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Part 1 Corporate company name 3 Filling in this form

Corporate name of
overseas company ©

UK establishment
number

| Gharda Chemicals Limited
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Please complete in typescript ar in
bold black capitals.

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

© This is the name of the company in
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Part 2

Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

Legislation

Please give the legislation under which the accounts have been prepared and,
if applicable, the legislation under which the accounts have been audited.

@ This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
preparation and, if applicable, the

Legislation © Under The Indian Companies Act 1956, The Company Accountin audit of accounts.
| "st'a.ehc?aftg "i&ﬂe P T AN pany 9§
m Accounting principles
Accounts Have the accounts been prepared in accordance with a set of generally accepted |@ Please insert the name of the

accounting principles?
Please tick the appropriate box.
[} No. Go to Section A3.

Yes. Please enter the name of the organisation or other
body which issued those principles below, and then go to Section A3.
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m Accounts
Accounts Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropriate box.

[J No. Go to Section AS.
Yes. Go to Section A4,

CHFPOQO
05/12 Version 5.0




0S AAD1

Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

m Audited accounts
Audited accounts Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generally accepted | @ Please insert the name of the
auditing standards? appropriate accounting

] . organisation or body.
Please tick the appropriate box.

[J No. Go to Part 3 ‘Signature’.

Yes. Please enter the name of the organisation or other body which issued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 'Signature’.

Name of organisation | ICAI - India, Companies Act 1956 India
or body @

Unaudited accounts

Unaudited accounts | Is the company required to have its accounts audited?
Please tick the appropriate box.

[0 No.
J Yes.

Part 3 Signature

I I am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company.

Signature Signanse

X X

'/
This form may be signed by:
Director, Secretary, Permanent representative.
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B Presenter information

“ Important information

You do not have to give any contact informatien, but if
you do it will help Companies House if there is a query
on the form, The contact information you give will be
visible ta searchers of the public record.

I Contact name

Kaushik Nathwani

| Compary name

l Address

Nagle James Associates Limited

Amba House

| 4th Ftoor, Kings Suite
I 15 College Road

| Post town

Harrow

1 CoonyRes Middlesex

R 8 O A O LN
| <™ UK

|DJ(

| ™ 02088613355

Checklist

Wae may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the

following:

O The company name and, if appropriate, the
registered number, match the information held on
the public Register.

{0 You have completed all sections of the form,
if appropriate.

O You have signed the form.

Please note that all this information will appear
on the public record.

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies
House address:

England and Wales:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ.

DX 33050 Cardiff.

Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF.
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

Northern treland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northemn Ireland, BT2 8BG.

DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

n Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www.companieshouse.gov.uk
or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been provided free of charge by Companies House,
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GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED

-The Directors have pleasure in presenting herewith their 44" Annual Report together

with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2010,

1. Financial Results

Sales (Net of Excise)
Other Income
Grass Income

Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Taxation

Less: Depreciation
Interest and finance charges
Profit before tax
Less : Taxation
' Income Tax
Deferred tax
Fringe benefit tax

Profit after tax

Add : Balance being surplus brought forward
Profit available for appropriation

Dividend : Interim Payment
: Final - Proposed
Tax on Dividend
Transfer to General Reserve
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet

2, Operations:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2010 2009
Rs.in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000 -
8,948,481 8,432,709
327,732 333,090
9,276,213 8,765,799
1,595,510 1,633,564
352,984 433392
110,768 227,110
1,131,758 973,062
310,265 382,630
57,094 (65,386)
- 6,600
764,399 649218
2,646,786 2,165,151}
3,411,185 2,814,169
- 6,451
64,514 25,806
10,715 5,482
76,440 129,844
31,259,516 2,646,786

The total sales turnover for the year ended 31* March, 2010 was Rs.895 crores
reflecting an increase of 6% as compared to previous year' turnover of Rs.843
crores. The Profit after tax has increased to Rs.76.44 crores from Rs.64.92 crores

of the previous year.

The company experienced pressure on selling price due to global competition
mainly from China, However, higher volumes, control over costs and reduction in
interest cost due to better management of working capital resulted into higher

profits as compared to previous year.

Your company’s manufacturing plants for all majo} products operated at optimum

capacities during the year.

b



Current Year’s Working :-

During the current year the company has achieved sales turnover of Rs.325 crores
for the period April 1o July 2010 as compared Rs.256 crores for the period April
1o July 2009. The adequacy of monsoon in India so far, would help better sales in
domestic market. However, despite better volumes, export realization is likely 10
be under pressure due to renewed threat from Chinese manufacturers especially in
view of season failure in China.

Dividend

In view of the adequacy of profits during the year, the Board finds it appropriate
and prudent (o recommend a Final dividend of Rs.1000/- per share. The impact of
dividend payout alongwith dividend distribution 1ax would be Rs.7.52 crores.

Finance

Company’s bankers extended their full support to meet with all our financial
requirements during the year. The company had met with all its repayment
obligations as and when they were due.

Subsidiary Companies
As required under Section 212 of the Companies Act,1956, the audited statement

of accounts alongwith the reports of the respective Board of Directors of Gujarat
Insecticides Limited, Gharda Australia Pty. Ltd. And Gharda Generics Inc.
alongwith the Auditors’ reports thereon for the year ended 31* March, 2010 have
been annexed.

Petition before the Company Law Board

A Petition was filed by certain shareholders before the company law board
claiming relief primarily in terms of section 397/398 of the Companies Act, 1956.
This petition was dismissed by the Company Law Board. The Petitioners have
filed an appeal which is pending before the Bombay High Court

Insurance .
All the properties and assets of the Company have been adequately insured.

Research and Development

Our Research and Development Centre has provided technology for manufacture
of several products, which have been commercialised by the Company. The
R&D Centre i5 continuing in its endeavor to develop the know-how to
manufacture pesticides, fungicides and herbicides, as also several other fine
chemicals. The In-house R & D Centres at Dombivli and Lote Parshuram are
recognized by the Department of Scientific and Industrial Research, New Delhi,
rendering it eligible for weighted deduction u/s 35(2AB) of the Income Tax Act,

1961,




. 10,

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

Human Resource
The team building and morale alongwith an innovative spirit at Gharda Chemicals

Ltd. is its critical strength and gives your Company a definite competitive
advaitage. The Company has a proud record of employees® relations {6z the past
several years and has continued to enjoy the same during the year under review.

Safety, Health and Environment (SHE}

Your Company is fully committed to taking responsible care of the environment.
Pollution contro!, optimisation of resources and minimising wastage is an ongoing
priority for your Company. Gharda strives to be a responsible corporate member
of the society committed to continuous improvement in SHE and provide a
healthy work environment for all employees. The Company has evolved a culture
which encourages employees and the society to adhere to the requirements of
SHE.

The company has initiated appropriate steps to adhere with safety, heajth and
environmental norms.

Fixed Deposits )
There were no fixed deposits which were due for repayment and remained unpaid

at the end of the year.

Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies’'Act, 1956 and the Articles of
Association of the Company Mr.D.T.Desai retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

Mr.Alexander K Luke, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer resigned
with effect from February 13, 2010. The Board places on record its appreciation
of his contribution during his tenure as Director of the company.

Auditors

M/s.Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company,
retire at the end of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for
reappointment. At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, members are
requested to appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

Cost Audit
The Company has maintained records prescribed under Cost Accounting Records
under Companies Act, 1956 for veterinary drugs and pesticides.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors state in

respect of Financial year 2009-10 that :

e In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed alongwith proper explanations relating to material
departures, if any.




* The accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the
judgements and estimates made were reasonable and prudent, so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the company for that year.

» Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

* The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concem basis.

I6. Additional information
Information as per the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules,1988 relating to conservation of energy, technology
absorplion, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in Annexure forming
part of this report.

The information required under the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules,
1975 and forming part of this report, is annexed hereto.

7. Acknowledgement
The directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the valuable co-

operation extended to the Company by the employees of the Company,
Government Departments, Lending Institutions, Bankers, Suppliers and
Customers for the smooth operation of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

K. H. GHARDA
Mumbai : August 14, 2010 CHAIRMAN



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988

A, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The fuel & power saving have been effected by the following implementations.

A) Fuel Saving:-
1) Boiler Feed Water temperature is maintained up to 120°C by using waste

heat from steam traps of header. Furnace oil saved — 430 Ltrs / day.

2) Canteen & workers bathroom hot water tanks have been insulated,
resulting in saving of 50% of steam from earlier consumption.

B) Power Saving:-
1} Installation of a dedicated cable from Pal sub-station resulted in

substantial saving as consumption of HSD is reduced.
2) By maintaining unity power factor, power consumption was reduced.

3) ETP R-512 Reactor stirrer assembly replaced with high efficiency
impeller stirrer assembly and 50 hp motor replaced with 20 hp. .

4) 40 w tube lights were replaced with 36w tube lights.

S) By maintaining of 3 Nos reciprocating compressor’s loading / unloading
system to auto “ON/OFF"” using pressure switches.

6) Centrifugal pump casings and impeliers coated with Thortex Coating.

7} Only ON push buttons 20 nos in place of rotary switch installed for reactor
view glasses.

g) 300 Itr centrifugal chiller replaced with Screw chiller.

9 Replaced 80 nos 60 watt vessel lamps with 23 watt CFL lamps.

b) Additional investments are made from time to time for reduction of consumption of
cnergy.

¢) The above measures contribute towards overall improvement in power and fuel
consumption and also reduce the cost of praduction.

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per
Form-A is annexed herewith.



FORWM A

{A} POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION

SR. 2009-10 20¢08-09
NO. PARTICULARS

1 ELECTRICITY
{a) Purchased

Units {(kwh} 57,299,944 56,966,475
- Total Amount {Rs.in ‘000) 284,618 243,234
Rato/Unit (Rs.) 4.97 427

{b} Own Generation
{l) Through Dlesel Genorator & Co-gen Plant

Units (kwh) 2,229,046 3,290,790

Units / Ltr. .73 3.00
Cost/Units {Rs.} ERY] 12,40

() Through Steam Turblne NIL NiL

2 COAL

Quantlty (tonnes) 28,380 335,000
Total amount:{'000) 132 1,632
Average rate f tonne 5.0 4.9

3 FURNACE OIL/LSHS

Quantity (Ltrs) 8,008,408 9,182,845
Total Amount {Rs.ln '000) 177,918 208,249
Averago rato / Ltr 22,22 22.68
4 BRIQUETTES
Quantity (kgs) 8,878,810 14,763,465
Total Amount {Rs.In ‘000) 3,045 © 50,481
Avorage rate / Kg. T2 a2
5 FIREWOQD
Quantity (kgs} 100,230 49,310
Total Amount (Rs.in '000) 163 58
Avoragoe rate / Kg. 1.63 1.7
6 COCONUT SHELL
Quontity (kgs) : 3,151,329 -
Total Amount {Rs.In ‘000}) 14,366 -
Average rato / Kg. 4.56 -
7 OTHERS
HSDISKO
Quantlty {Ltrs) 75,989 126,879
Total Amount (Rs.in "0D0) 1,837 3,488
Avarage rato/ KL{Rs.) 25.49 27.58

8 CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION
NO. UNIT OF PRODUCTICN (KG)
1 ELECTRICITY 2,79 2,92

FURNACE OILILSHS(includos Briqu 0.38 0.50
Firowood Coconut Shallate,)

There is no specific standard as consumption per unit depends on the product-mix.
The Company manufactures a wide range of products, viz. Pesticides and Intermediates.

Form 8 js enclosed to the report for disclosure of particulars with respect to.
TYechnology Absorption.

Note: Consumption per unit of production in respect of Furnace oll etc is not comparable
with that of the previous year in view of usage of other inputs like briqusttes etc.
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: FORM B

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

1. SPECIFIC AREAS IN WHICH R&D WAS CARRIED OUT BY THE COMPANY:
R&D was carried out in the areas of polymers, agrocharmieats sad pigmems. More
specifically they are in the following areas:

a)
b)
c)

d)

Process was developed for an Agro Chemical & is being commissioned.
Support to existing products was given.

Process for converting one of the byproduct of CMAC to a value added product
i.e. a raw material for CMAC is in an advanced state of development

Process for a solvent for polymenisation was developed and commercialized.

2. BENEFITS DERIVED OUT OF R&D WORK:
The company derived following benefits from the continued thrust on R&D

2)
b)

<)

Commercial introduction of an Agrochemical.
Continued support to production department made us cost competitive.
Patent applications were filed in India and abroad for the new inventions.

3, FUTURE PLAN OF ACTION
Apart from the thrust on ongoing areas, the R&D plans to develop cost effective

processes for large volume chemicals.

4. EXPENDITURE ON R&D

C.

Rs. in Thousand

{ Capital 27,415
2. Revenue 210617
3. Total 238,032
4 Ré&D Expenditure as a % of Turnover 2.56%

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The company strives to explore new markets and increase exports. Export sales constitute
approx. 49% of the total turnover of the company. The company earned foreign exchange
of Rs.4,324,682 thousand by way of exports and incurred expenditure in foreign currency
of Rs.1,299,938 thousand.

For and on behalf of the Board

(K.H.GHARDA)
CHAIRMAN

MUMBALI - August 14, 2010



AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED

1.

We have audited the artached Balance Sheet of Gharda Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) as at
March 31, 2010, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the
year ended on that date, both annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audil,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles wsed and the significant estimates made by the
management, as well as evaluating rhe overail financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a rcasonable basis for our opinion,

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (CARQ) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we give in the
Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above , we report that:

i) We have obtained all the information and expianations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
1

i) In our opinion, praper books of account as'required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of the books;

iti) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Fiow Statement dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1955;

v) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said accounts read together with the significant accounting policies and other notes to
accounts, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India:

a) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2010,



b) in the case of the profit and Joss account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date; and

¢) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended
on that date,

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2010 and
taken on record by the board of directors, we report that none of the directars is disqualified as an
March 31, 2010 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g} of sub-section (} of section
274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. 117366W]

R. D. Kamat
Partner

Mumbai, dated: August 14,2010 Membership No. 36822



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS® REPORT

Re: Gharda Chemicals Limited
Referred to in Paragrapl 3 of our report of even date

i)

i)
a)

b)

¢)

iii)

iv)

In respect of its fixed assets:

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in
accordance with a programme of verification, which in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute a substantial part
of the fixed assets of the Compeny and such disposal has, in our opinion, not affected the going
concern status of the Company.

in respect of its inventories:

inventories, except goods in transit and stocks lying with third parties, were physically verified
during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. For
stocks lying with third parties at the year end, written confirmations have been obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Compatiy and the nature of its business.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records of its inventories and discrepancies noticed on such verification have been
appropriatety dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies,
firms or other parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the
explanations that some of the items purchased are of special nature and suitable alternative sources
are not readily avaitable for obtaining comparable quotations, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to
purchases of inventory and fixed assets and the sale of goods. The activities of the company do not
involve the sale of services.
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vi)

vii)

viii)

a)

b)

In respect of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained in pursuance of section 30!
of the Companies Act, [956, to the best of our knowledge and beliief and according to the information
and explanations given to us:

(a) The particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 30! that needed to be
entered in the register, maintained under the said section have been 5o entered.

(b) Where each of such transactions is in excess of Rs 5 lakhs in respect of any party, the
transactions have been made at prices, which are prima facie, reasonable having regard to the
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of Section 58A,
58AA of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with
regard to the deposits accepted from the public. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal
or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal,

In our opinion, the internal audit funciions carried out during the year by a firm of Charntered
Accountants appointed by the management have been commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company relating to
the manufecture of insecticides and bulk drugs pursuant to the order made by the Central Government
for the maintenance of cost records under Section 209(1) {d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining
whether they are accurate or complete. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records for any other product of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:
The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues like Provident
Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Wealth tax, Custom duty, Excise duty and

cess anu other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no material undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Wealth Tax, Custom
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other materia! statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2010 for a
periad of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and
Cess which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2010 on account of disputes are given below:

11



X)

xi)

xi)

xiit)

Name of the Statute Nature | Amount Periodsto | Forum where dispute is pending
of Dues | (Rs. in which
thousands) | amounts
relate
Central Excise Act Excise {5,291 | 2004-05 Customs, Excise and Service Tax
1944 Duty Appellate Tribuna{CESTAT),
Mumbai
Central Excise Act Excise 1,309 | 2003-04 to | Commissioner of Central Excise
1944 Duty 2006-07 and Customs (Appeals), Surat
Bombay Sales Tax Act, | Sales 1,070 | 1995-96 Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal
1959 Tax (Bench) IV Mumbai.
Gujarat Sales Tax Act, | Sales 4,839 1 2002-03 to | Gujarat Value Added Tax Tribunal,
1969 . Tax 2004-05 Ahmedabad
Central Sales Tax Act, | Sales 675 | 2003-04 Gujarat Value Added Tax Tribunal,
1956 Tax ' Ahmedabad
Service Tax Act, 1994 Service 17,813 | 1997-98 Customns, Excise and Service Tax
Tax and 1998- Appellate Tribupal{(CESTAT),
99 Ahmedabad
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income 5,378 | A.Y.2003- | Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
Tax 04
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income 018,976 | A.Y.2005- | Commissioner of Income Tax
Tax 06 to (Appeals)
' AY.2007-
08

The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred cash
losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

tn our opinion and according to the information and.explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans and
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities and
hence provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
chit fund or a nidhi/mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xiii} of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

12



Xiv)

XV)

xvi)

Xvii)

xviii)

xix)

XxX)

xxi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4 (xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and
conditions of the guarantees given by the Company for loans taken by its subsidiary company from a
bank, are not prima facie prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, in our opinion, no new term loans have been received by the Company during the year. The term
loan received in the earlier years have been applied for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained, where such end use has been stipulated by the lender, other than temporary deployment
pending application, ’

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have prima facie, not been used
during the year for fong term investment.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and Companies covered in
the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and hence the question of
whether the price at which shares have been issued is prejudicial to the interest of the Company does
not arise.

No debentures have been issued by the Company and hence the question of creating security or
charge in respect thereof does not arise.

The Company has not raised any money by way of public issues during the year,
To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud

on or by the Company was noticed or reported during the year,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No. {1 7366W)

R.D. Kamat
Partner

Mumbai, dated: August 14, 2010 Membership No. 36822
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GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2010

Rupees in thousands

sg:h:c;ule As at March 31, 2010 As at March 31, 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS :
Share capital 1 6,451 6,451

Reserves and surpius

2 _ 6,221,994

5,532,824

6,228,445 5,539,275
LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans 3 166,868 1,857,771
Unsecyred Loans 4 131,919 95,630
298,787 1,993,401
TOTAL 6,527,232 7!532!676
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 5
Gross block 7,225,313 6,695,769
Less: Depreciation and amortisation 5,586,655 5,250 527
Net block 1,638,658 1,445,242
Capitat work-in-progress 210,511 504,257
1,849,169 1,949,499
INVESTMENTS 6 175,832 95,435
DEFERRED TAX ASSET (net) 120,323 177,416
(Refer note no. 8 of scheduie 19 (II))
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND
ADVANCES
Inventories 7 2,106,156 2,815,651
Sundry debtors B 2,790,987 2,509,980
Cash and bank balances 9 316,171 207,261
Other current assets 10 465,515 615,636
Loans and advances 11 522,476 591,011
6,201,305 6,739,539
Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES
AND PROVISIONS
Current liabllities 12 .1,620,810 1,272,607
Provisions 13 198,587 156,606
1,819,397 1,429,213
NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,381,908 5,310,326
TOTAL ST _LEEEE. S
Significant accounting policies and
notes to accounts 19
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
Faor Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants K. H, GHARDA D.¥. DESAL
Managing PRirector Director
R. D. KAMAT ANIL NAWAL MICHAEL RA)
Partner Chjef Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : August 14, 2010,

Place : Mumbal
August 14, 2010.

Date :
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PROFIT AND 1.OSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010
Rupees In thousands

@ GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED

Schedule Year ended Yeat ended
No. March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
Sales (Gross) 9,342,432 8,954,330
Less: Excise duty 393,951 521,621
Sales (Net) 8,948,481 8,432,769
Other Income 14 327,732 333,090
T 95,276,213 —8,765.799
EX DITURE
Cost of matertials 15 4,874,050 4,478,543
Excise duty on samples, leakages, stock
written off and others 34,891 1,441
Personnel expenses 16 760,313 . 660,087
Manufacturing and other expenses 17 2,011,449 1,994,872
Interest and finance charges i8 110,768 227,110
Depreciation and amortisation . 352,984 433,392
§,144,455 7,795,445
Less: Expense capltalised (Refer note no. 12
of schedule 19 (11}) - 2,708
8,144,455 7,792,737
Profit before tax 1,131,758 973,062

Provision for taxation:
Taxatlon (including wealth tax Rs.250
(2009:Rs,130) and prior years Rs.15

(2009:Rs,NINY ' 310,265 382,630
 Deferred tax 57,094 (65,386}
Fringe benefit tax - 6,600
367,350 T 323,841
Profit after tax 764,399 649,218
Surplus brought forward from previous year
2,646,786 2,165,151
Amount availatle for apprapriation 3,411,185 2,814,369
APPROPRIATIONS
Interim dividend Rs, NIl {2009: Rs, 100}
per equity share i - 6,451
Proposed dividend Rs.1,000 (2009: Rs,
400) per equlity share 64,514 25,806
Tax on dividend 10,715 5,482
Transfer to General raserve 76,440 129,844
Balance carrled to balance sheet 3,259,516 2,646,786
, 3g4115185 2!Bl4i369
Baslc and diluted earnings per share (EPS)
(In rupees) (Refer note no.16 of schedule .
19 (1) ) 11,849 10,063
Significant accounting policies and
notes to accounts 19
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants K, H, GHARDA D. ¥. DESAL
Managing Directar Director
R. D. KAMAT ANIL NAWAL MICHAEL RAJ
Partner Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbal Place : Mumbail
Date ! August 14, 2010. Date : August 14, 2010,
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' CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

@ : : GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED

Rupees [n thousands

Current Year ended
March 31, 2010

Previous Year ended
March 31, 2009

Cash Flow from Qperating activities

Net profit befora tax 1,131,758 973,062
Adjustments:
Agd
Depreciation and amortisation 352,984 433,392
Interest and finance charges 110,768 227,110
Provision for doubtful debts (net) 35,065 44,245
Exchange rate diffrence (Refer Note ) below) (24,154) 15,391
Loss on fixed assets sold / written off (net} 172 102
Less .
Dividend on trade investment 388 40
Share of Profit - Gharda Investment Syndicate 29 45
interest iIncome 7,871 4,301
Bad debts recovered - 860
Provision for |bans and advances no longer required written back 19,968 -
Sundry credit batences written back 2,213 .
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back 5,699 36,368
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,570,425 1,651,689
Adjustments for:
Inventorles 709,492 {413,257)
Trade and other recelvables {33,911} (38,270)
Trade and other payables 338,982 {3,831)
Cash Generated from Operations 2,584,988 1,196,332
Less : Direct taxes patd 345,910 584,850
Net Cash from operating activities . A 2,239,078 611,482
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (Including Capital work~In-progress) (258,966) (320,201)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 16,860 30,927
Purchase of investments {80,397) (1,253)
Share of Proflt - Gharda Investment Syndicate 29 0
Dividend on trade investment 388 40
Fixed deposits reallsed 4,976 (4,329)
laterest Income 4,7%0 4,301
Net Cash used in investing activitles 8 {312,360} (290,510}
Cash flow from (nancing activities
Repaymeant of borrowings {1,693,361) (205,972)
Interest and finance charges (113,435) (232,560)
Dividend pald {inciuding tax thereon) (30,191) {37,740)
Net Cash used in financing activities [ [1,836,987) (476,272)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents At+B+C 89,731 {155,301)
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the beginning of the year 217,704 373,005
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 307,435 217,704
1. Cash and cash equivatents inciuded In the cash flow statement comprise of the following:
Cash and bank balances (Including EEFC account balances) (Refer
schedule 9 - Cash and Bank balances) 316,171 207,264
Add: Unrealised toss on foreign currency ¢ash and cash equivalents - (812) 23,342
Less: Fixed deposits under tlen with bank and varlous Government
authorities * (7,923} - 12,899}
Total cash and cash equivalents 307,436 217,704

* The sforesald fixed deposits being restrictec for Its use have been excluded from cash and cash equivalent and grouped

under the tnvesting activity including for the previous vear.

2. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set-out In the Accounting Standarg 3 (AS 3)

“Cash Flow Statements”.

3. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearcanged wherever necessary

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis
Chartered Accountants

R. D. KAMAT
Partner

Place : Mumbai
Date ! August 14, 2010,
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For and on behalf of the Board

K. H. GHARDA
Manaping Director

ANIL NAWAL -
Chlef Financilal Offlcer

Plage : Mumbal
Date : August 14, 2010,

D, T. PESAL
Director

MICHAEL RAJ
Company Secretary



GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED
@ SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Rupees In thausands

As at March 31, 2010 As 8y March 31, 2009
- al §
AUTHORISED
150,000 (2009: 100,000} Equity shares of Rs, 100 sach
{Refer note no. 1 of schedule 19(I[}) e300 10,000

Igsued, subscribad and pald-up :

64,5149 Equlty shares ¢f Rs. 100 ecach fully pald-up 6,451 6,451
Qf the above,

62,166 Equity shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid are

Issued as Bonus shares by capitallsatlon of General

Reserve and Securities Premlum Account

Total :—-—-—-ﬂu —-—::ﬂgﬁiéén
- S a S :
Speciai capitai incentive
Balance as per last 8alance sheet . 2,000 2,000
Balance as per last Balance sheet 2,884,038 2,754,194
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss account 76,4490 129,844
2,960,478 2,884,038
Surplus in Profit and i0ss account 3,259,516 2,646,786
Total 6!221|994 555321824
Working capital loans from banks 166,868 1,894,573
Interest accrued and due - 3,198
{Refer note below) 166,868 1,857,771
Tota! 166!858 15397'??1

Note:
Cash credit, blll discounting and packing credit limits from banks are secured by a charge on a parl passu basis by
(i} First charge on stocks of raw materials, semi-finished and finlshed goods, stores and spares, bilis recelvables, book debts
and all other movables Inciuding documents of title to goods and other assets such as outstanding manles receivables by way of
cash assistance under any scheme and clalms by way of refund of customs/exclse ar other scheme of the Government, bllls,

invoices. securities, both present and future ang -
(i} Charge on factory plot etc., a5 factory plot nos.8-22, 23, 24, 27, 28 & 29 at MIDC, Dombivii, Dist Thane, Plot D 1/2, MIDC,

Lote Parshuram, Tal.Khed, Dist.Ratnaglel, Plot 3525, GIDC, Panoll, Tal. Ankleshwar, Dist. Bharuch - tagether with all bulldings
and structures thereon and all plant and machinery located at these plots,

Flxad deposits ’ 131,919 95,630
Total 131,919 55,530

Note: Fixed Deposits Include loans from Directors Rs.
17,000 (2009: Rs. Nil)
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GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PARY OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Rupeeés [n thousands

As at March 31, 2010

.y

A

As at March 31, 2009

1

A,
|

o

- .

(At cokt / carrying amount unless otherwise stated)

Trade invastments (Unquoted)

1In Jointly Controlled entity: {fully pald}

CGNS Ltd. . -

25 shares of GBP 1 each

(Refer note no. 5 of schedule 19 {1I))

In Others : (fully paid)

20,000 equity Shares of Rs,10 each of Bharuch Enviro
Infrastructure Limited

Non Trade Investments {Unquoted) {fully pald)
In subsidiary companles: (fully pald}

Gujarat Insecticiges Limited - 203,170 equlty shares of
Rs, 10 each

{Refer note no. 5 of schedule 19 (I1))

Gharda Australia Pty. Lid.-
75,000 shares of AUD 1 each

Gharda Genercs Inc,
3,000,000 shares of USD D.01each

In Others : (futly pald)
Gharda Invest.nent Syndicate

* (Refer note no. 5 of schedule 19 (11))

1 equity share of Rs.50 each in Socla! Co-operative
Bank Limited
{Rupees fifty only)

25 equity share of Rs,10 each In Shamraog Vitthal Co-
opesrative Sank Limited
{Rupees six hundred twenty flve only)

In Government Securities:
National Saving Certificates
Less: Provislon

tand at Warangai

Mutual fund units - Retiance Money Manager Fund
{ Scheme - Institutional - Daify Dividend)

Taotal

Raw materlals and packing materlals
Raw materlals in transit
Waork-ln-process

finished goods {Including Traded goods)

Total

Debts autstanding

for a period exceeding six manths:
- Consldered Gaod
- Congtdered Doubtful

Less :Provision far doubtfu! debts

Other debts consldered good
Total

(Inctudes Rs.41,845 (2009 :Rs. Nil) due from subsidiary
company)

1,253

18

83,151

2,027

2,422 2,422
200 260

83,151

2,027

1,253
86,431 86,431
5,464 .35

L]

) 0
1 1

30

30
946 . 946

80,368 -
"1'7'5'5332 - '95"435_
336,565 249,188
225,890 342,706
506,640 534,632
1,037,061 1,689,125
'ﬁzo"&'{x‘ss‘ — —"E'STz“ . 51

193,561 226,593
145,187 115821
338,748 o ‘345‘,‘4 14
145,187 115,821
193,561 226,593
2,597,426 2,283,387
2,790,987 . _'2:309!980
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@- SRR ‘GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED-
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

]

Rupees In thousands

As at March 31, 2010 As at March 31, 2009

Cash an hand {including chegues on hand Rs.§1,442

(2009: Rs. 49,047)) 33,627 51,415
Balance with schedulad banks: M
1 in current accounts (including remittance In transit) 88,867 90,121
: In exchange earners forelgn currency accounts 26 47
{including margin deposit &f Rs. 4,575 (2009: Rs, :
9,418)) * 174,309 12,899
= In unclaimed dividend accounts 160 %]
- 263,362 103,130

Balance with non-scheduled banks:- {Inciuding
remittance In transic for Rs. 16,581 (2009: Rs.Nii)
Current account with :

- HSBC Bank, London 11,064 17,393

- Wachovia Bank USA

8,118

35,323

19,182 52,716
Totat 316‘171 207,261
* Includes deposits pledged with Gevernment sutharlties i
R5.3,348 (2009: Rs. 3,481)
Name of the Non-schoduled Gonk Maximum balagce during the
Wachovia Bank, USA - US $ A/c ‘8,118 35,323 91,962 106,303
HSBC Bank, London - US § Afc 9,585 16,954 55,414 37,771
HSBC Bank, London - GBP A/c 180 111 954 2,005
HSBC Bank, London - Euro A/C 1,299 kil 82,051 686,202
Schedule 10 - Other Current Asgets ;
Sales tax setoff recelvable 98,42% 115,643
Excise rebate recelvable 118,161 202,292
Export incentive recelvable 243,451 294,004
Other receivables 5,478 3,697
Total 5515 815,636
- Lo
Unsecured, considered good - unless otherwise stated
Lean to CGNS Lid, - A jointly centrolled entity - 7,608
Loans to staff
- Good 22,167 19,160
- Doubtful - 19,968
22,167 39,128
Less: Provision for doubtful advances " - 19,968
22,167 19,160
Advance to suppllers 19,923 74,980
Advances recoverable In cash or In kind or for value to
be received 43,535 45,725
Advance towards gratulty fund 23,929 .
Advence payment of taxes (including wealth tax) {net ar
provisions) 230,145 196,637
Advance payment of fringe benefit tax (net of
provisions) 4,826 3,618
Deposits 43,563 47,492
Balance with excise authorities 124,388 195,761
- Total 522‘476 39!l011
Scheduje 12 - Current Liabllities:
Sundry creditors
- Total outstanding dues to Micro enterprises and small
enterprises 53,754 50,681

(Refer note no.11 of schedule 19 (11))

- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(Inctuges Rs, 270,585 {2009 :Rs. 80,693) due to

1,027,673

822,013 ,

1,081,427

subsidlary company) 872,694
Advances from customers 63,218 49,071
Other labilitles* 475,123 348,483
Unclalmed dividend®* 161 64
Interest accrued but not due on loans 531 -
Unclaimed matured fixed deposits*** 350 2,295
Total 1‘620‘810 1I272I507

{*Includes temparary overdraft balance of Rs.3,081 (2009:
Rs, 3,885))

{**There are no amounts due and outstanding to be
credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund)

(**" Includes Rs. Nil {2009: Rs. NII} due and cutstanding
to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund)

20
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@. GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Rupess In thousands

As at March 31, 2010

As at March 11, 2009

. Ahids Ao
Compensated absences 75,244 66,475
Provision for Gratulty - 10,896
Proposed dividend 64,514 25,806
Tax on propesed dividend 10,715 4,386
Provision for tax {Iincluding wealth tax) (net of :
advances) - 48,114 48,243
Provision for fringe beneflt tax {net of advances)} - 800
Total 1985587 133!606
GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED
@ SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF' PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Rupees in thousands

Year ended
March 31, 2010

Year ended
March 31, 2009

Interest on - (Gross)
" Bank deposits
Others
{Tax deducted at source Rs. 735 (2009: Rs.674)

Dividend on investment
Share of Profit - Gherda Investment Syndicate
Insurance Claims
Sale of scrap
Export Incentives {net)
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written
back
Provislon for doubtful loans and advances no longer
reaquired writtcn back
Provision for doubtful investment written back
Bad debts recovered
Rent received
Sundry credit batance written back
Mis¢ellaneaous [ncome
Total

Raw material and packing material consumed
Purchase of traded goods

Opening atock
wark-In-process
Finlshed goods .

Laass: Closing stock' :
Work-in-process
Finished goods

Excise duty on stock (net)
' Total

6 - -
Salarles, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses
Tota!

1,689,125

1,037,061

3,116 485
4!755 3:815
7,871 4,301
388 40
29 45
581 1,823
23,295 21,816
247,437 257,956
5,699 36,368
19,968
3o .
- 860
1,695 2,019
2,213 1,087
18,526 5,775
337, 232 333,090
4,104,218 4,676,685
142,462 224,345
534,632 748,007
1,032,410
2,223,757 1,780,417
506,640 534,632
1,689,125
1,543,701 2,223,757
2,926,736 4,457,690
52,686 20,853
4,874,050 4,478,543
650,761 513,782
31,456 78,353
78,096 67,952
760,313 ~— 880,087
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 GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Rupees In thousands

Yaar ended
March 31, 2010

Year ended
March 31, 2009

" *Inciudes Interest R5.293 (2009:Rs. Nil) paid to

managing Director

22

Consumabte stores 172,025 128,844
Power, fuel and water 509,095 578,319
Frelght and forwarding . 152,526 289,212
Processing and packing charges 70,239 156,295
Rent 13,331 17,861
Rates and taxes 13,677 7,879
Insurance 22,343 26,821
Repalrs @
Bullding 17,761 16,067
Plant and machinery 85,364 61,101
Others 23,303 17,033
126,428 94,201
Legal and professional charges 149,230 97,678
Commission 38,777 51,415
Sales promotian expenses 90,542 74,276
Discount 79,108 80,565
Remuneration to auditors @
Audit fees 3,500 3,500
Tax audit 750 750
Certificates, taxation and others 215 150
Qut of pocket expenses 12 10
4,487 4,450
Travelling and conveyance gxpense 44,038 41,739
Exchange loss (net) 51,939 137,860
Donation 19,965 12,014
Loss on fixed assets sold / written off {net) 172 102
Provision for doubtfui debts {net) ' 35,065 44,246
Bad debts written off 2,852 6,852
Investments written off 30 -
Miscellaneous expenses 215,583 142,243
(includes registration charges, vehicle maintenance, trunk
telenhnne charnes, selentifle resaarch axnenses At . g et R ——
Total 2‘011|449 1|994i872
- T .
Interest on fixed loans * 11,849 20,624
Interest others 64,102 170,331
Bank charges 34,817 36,155
Ty
Total — _Iio7sE T



Schedule 19 ~ Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts:

) §

a)

b)

<)

d)

f)

Significant Accounting Policies

Basls of preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared under the histcr.. v cost convention in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting nnmnciples in India and
applicable accounting standards and relevant provisinne of the Companies Act,
1956. .

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to
be made that affect the reported amount of assets and llabilitles an the date of the
financial statement and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting perlod. The difference between the actual results and the estimates are
recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

Fixed Assets : .
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment If any. Cost Includes cost of acquisltion/ construction,
ail related direct cost and is net off credit under cenvat / service tax and vaiue

added tax. .

Intangible Assets ’

Intangible assets are recognised only if It Is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost
of the assets can be measured reflably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Impalrment of assets .

At the end of each year, the Company determines whether a provision should be
made for impalrment loss on assets by considering the indications that an
impairment loss may have occurred In accordance with Accounting Standard 28
(AS 28) “Impairment of Assets”. Where the recoverable amount of any assets Is
lower than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment loss on assets is made
for the difference. The impairment foss recognised in prior accounting periods is
reversed If there has been a positive change In the estimate of recoverabie
amount,

Depreclation

The company provides depreciation for the full year irrespective of the date of
acquisition at locations where the written down value method is followed. At
locations where the straight line method is used, depreciation is provided for the
full year for additlons made In the first half of the year and at half the rate for
additions In second half. Leasehold land |s amortised over the lease period.
Intangibte assets are amortized over a perlod of sixty months. No depreciation is
provided on assets sold during the year. Individual assets costing less than
Rs.5,000 are depreciated in full in the year of acquisition.

The company follows the following rates for depreciatlonlbn the written down value
for its assets at all the locations of the campany:

Furniture, fixtures and equipments 15 to 20 per cent
Computers 40 per cent
Vehicles : 30 per cent
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9)

h)

h

»

k)

The company foliows the following rates for depreciation on the written down value
for its assets at Bandra, Dombivli, Lote (excluding Lote Plant and Machinery at
Ptant III to VI1):

Buildings 5 to 10 per cent

Plant and machinery 40 per cent

The Company follows the below mentioned rates for depreclation on the straight
line method for its assets at Lote (For Plant and Machinery at Plant _III to VI),
Panoli and Jammu:

Buildings 3.34 per cent
Plant and machinery 1C.34 per cent
Weighing scale 4.75 per cent

The aggregate amount of depreciation provided is not lower than the quantum of
depreciation if rates stated in schedule X1V of Companles Act 1956 are adopted,

Investments

Investments classified as long-term investments are stated at cost. Provision is
made to recognise a decline, other than temporary in the value of investments.
Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

Inventories

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is computed
based on moving welghted average in respect of all procured materlals and
comprises of materials and appropriate share of utillties and other overheads in
respect of work-in-process and finished goods. Finished goods are valued inclusive
excise duty. Consumable stores, spares and fuel purchased are charged to revenue
in the year of purchase,

Excise
Excise Duty is accounted on the basls of payments made in respect of goods
cleared and provision is made for goods lying In bonded warehouses.

Revenue recognition O

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards In
respect of ownership of products are transferred by the Company and no
significant uncertainty as to collectabllity or measurabillty exlists.

Revenue from product sales Is stated net of returns, sales tax / value added tax
and applicable trade discounts, rebates and allowances.

Interest on Income Is recognized on time proportion basis.

Dividend income on Investment is recognized when the right to receive is
established.

Foreign Currency Transaction / Translation

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange In force at
the time transactlons are effected. Exchange differences arising on settlement of
foreign currency transactions are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

Monetary items denominated In foreign currency are restated using the exchange
rate prevailing at the date of the Balance Sheet and the resulting net exchange
difference is recognized In the Profit and Loss Account,

In case of forward exchange contracts to cover the foreign currency receivabies,
the difference between the exchange rate on the date of such contracts and the
year end rate Is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. Any profit / loss arising
on cancellation of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense of
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)

the year. Premium / discount arising on such forward exchange contracts Is
amortised as income / expense over the Hfe of the contract.

ches
In respect of the foreign branches, being Integral foreign operations, all revenues
and expenses (except depreciation} during the year are reported at the original
rate of exchange In force at the time transactlons are effected. Monetary assets
and llabllitles are restated at the year end exchange rate. Non-monetary assets
and Habllltles are stated at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction,
Balance in " head ofﬂce account whether deblit or credit Is translated at the amount
of the balance in the "foreign branch’ account in the books of the head office. Net
gain / loss on foreign currency translation is recognized in the Profit and Loss
Account.

Employee benefits
a) Post Employment Benefits and Other Long Term Benefits,

)
Company's contribution for the year paid/payable to defined contribution
retirement beneflt schemes are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

i)
Company's liabilitles towards defined benefit plans and other long term benefits

expected to occur after twelve months, are determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. Actuarial valuations under the Projected Unit Credit Method are
carried out at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
the Profit and Loss account in the peried of occurrence of such gains and losses.
Past service cost Is recognised immedlately to the extent benefits are vested,
otherwise it is amortilsed on stralght-line basis over the remaining average period
untll the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the falr value of
scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the lower of
the amount determined as defined benefit liability and the present value of
availabte refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

b) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits expected to be pald in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised undiscounted during the period employee
renders services. These benefits include mainly compensated absences such as
leave expected to be availed with in a year, bonus / incentives,

m) Dividend

The company provides for interim dividends (Including tax thereon), praposed by
the Board of Dlrectors. The Company provides for final dividend (including tax
thereon) recommended by the Board of Directors subject to the approval of the
members at the Annual General Meeting.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets Is caplitalized as part of the cost of the asset. A
qualifying asset Is one that necessarily takes a substantlal perlod of time to get
ready for Its intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred. )
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o)

p)

q)

Segment reporting

The company has identified the segments having regard to the dominant source of
revenue and nature of risks and returns and based on the internal organisation and
management structure.

Prifnary segments are reported based on business segments viz, Agro chemicals,
and others (plgments and veterinary drugs).

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the business segment and
consist principally of fixed assets and identified current assets. Segment llabilities
primarily include creditors and other operating liabllities. Assets/liabllities that
could not be allocated are separately disclosed in unallocated column.

Secondary segment is reported based on the geographical locatlons, viz. India,
USA, Europe, Asla and Others. Revenues in the secondary segment are ldentifled
based on the location of the customers. Fixed assets are ldentified based on the
geographical location of the assets. Capital expenditure relates to fixed assets
purchased during the year.

Taxes on Income

Income Taxes are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard 22 (AS
22) “Accounting for Taxes on Income”. Tax expense comprises of current tax,
deferred tax and fringe beneflt tax.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid or recovered from the
tax authorrt{es using the applicable tax rates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for future tax consegquence
attributable to timlng differences between taxable income and accounting income
that are measured at relevant enacted tax rates. At each balance sheet date the
company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, to the extent they become
reasonably certain or virtually certain of reallsation, as the case may be.

Fringe Benefit Tax is recognlzed in accordance with the relevant provislons of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Guldance note on Fringe Benefit Tax Issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation In measurement are
recognised when there Is a present obligation as a result of past events and It is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not
recegnised but are disclosed in the Notes to Accounts. Contingent Assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Notes to accounts - all fiqures in rupees are jn thousands, unless

sta rwise.

Pursuant to the order dated November 14, 2008 passed by the Bombay High
Court, the resolution for increase in the authorised capital passed at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on February 15, 1990 has been recognised’ /
incorporated In the accounts. The company has pald the-requisite stamp duty and
fees on August 11, 2010

The Company’s plgment division at Panol! carried at a written down value of
Rs 353,806 has been operating significantly befow breakeven ievels. The. Company
has identified an operating plan that is expected to generate sufficient net cash
flows to recover the carrying value as on March 31, 2010, Based on such plans, no
impairment provision Is considered necessary.
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3. Estimated amount of contracts remalning to be executed on capital account and
not provided for (net of advances} Rs. 97,040 (2009: Rs, 79,952).

4, Contingent llabilitles

a) Storage charges depending upon execution of land b .-ds Rs. 2,345 (2009:
Rs., 1,895)
b) Guarantee given to bankers of subsldiary company 1 .wards credit facllities

avalled by the subsidiary Rs, 295,000 (2008: Rs. 35: D00). Amount utilized
as at year end Rs.172,796 (2009: Rs. 77,497)

Claims agalnst company not acknowledged as debt towards:

(1) Sales tax demand disputed In appeal and pending decision before higher
authorities. The company expects to succeed In appeal proceedings Rs.
6,584 (2009: Rs 8,625).

(1) Excise duty demand disputed in appeal and pending decision before higher
authoritles Rs. 16,600 (2009: Rs.18,847). The company expects to
succeed [n appeal proceedings

(ill)Service tax demand disputed In appeal and pending decislon before higher
authoritles Rs. 17,813 (2009: Rs. 17,813). The company expects to
succeed In appeal proceedings.

(v)Incrementat wage demands by the Union at one division - amount
unascertainable,

{v) The Company has recelved Income tax demands (including interest)
aggregating to Rs 1,027,731 (2009: Rs, 865,230) (pald/adjusted under
protest, included under advance tax - Rs, 153,700 (2009: Rs. 153,700Q) in
respect of earlier year tax assessments, which are on account of transfer
pricing adjustments, deemed dividend and other disallowances. The
Company has flled appeals with the relevant income tax authorities
agalnst such demands and Is confldent of favorable order in all such

cases,

(vi)In respect of claim made by overseas partles in earlier year, court jury
delivered judgement subsequent to the vyear-end awarding total
compensation of USD 5,823 (Rs. 261,453) and interest which aggregates
USD 1,601 (Rs.71,899) up to March 31, 2010. The Company had filed
motlon for judgement, The motlon was heard by the court and the jury
verdict has been vacated. ’

5. Investments

1.

.

‘Investment in Gujarat Insecticides Limited Includes 50 equity shares of

Rupees ten each fully pald, held In the names of nominees of the company.

The company Is a member In Gharda Investment Syndicate, an assoclation of
persons. Its assets include 162,500 equity shares in Gujarat Insecticides
Limited. The beneficiaries and their share of Investment (including accretion

of profits) are: -

Sr. Name of Members Shares 2010 2009
No, % Rupees Rupees
Gharda Chemicais Limlted 95% 5,464 5,435
2 | or. K.H. Gharda 5% 391 390
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111, The Company has invested Rs 2,422 in CGNS Limited (CGNS), a jointly

6. (i)

controlled entity In an earlier year. Such investment is considered by the
Cempany as a long term strategic investment.

The Company's percentage of holding in CGNS Is 25% and the proportionate
share of assets, llabllities, Income and expenditure of the above joint venture
company on the basis of the latest available audited financlal statements for
the year ended December 31, 2008 is given below:

2008 2007
- Figures In
Particulars Sterling Pound (In thousand)
Assets 21 48
Llabilities 13 22
Income 13 204
Expenditure . 3 148

AccGunts of CGNS for the year ended December 31, 2009 are not drawn up /
audited. However, considering Its business plans and the fact that CGNS has
commitments / flnanclal support from all four joint shareholders, no provision
against the carrying value of such investments is considered necessary.

The Company has entered into Forward Exchange Contracts, being derivative
instruments for hedge purpose and not intended for trading or speculation
purposes, to establish the amount of currency in Indian Rupees requlred or
avallable at the settlement date of certain receivables. The following are the
outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts entered Into by the company:

Buy or Cross Amount In
Currency Sell Currency Forelgn Currency
) 31-Mar-10 | 31-Mar-09
Indlan
Ushb Seil Rupees 500,000 2,116,212

(it) The year-end foreign cun:éncy exposures that have not been hedged by a

derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

a. Amount receivable In foreign currency on account of the following
As on 31.03,2010 As on 31.03.2009
Particulars CFL::':'(:sIr?:y Amount In Amount in
Rupees Foreign Rupees Forelgn .
Currency Currency
Export receivable usD 855,670 19,061,410 . 837,908 16,586,625
EURO 310,864 5,142,263 309,061 4,577,331
Other receivable usD 1,474 32,836 9,628 190,295
GBP 409 5962 676 9315
Balance with Bank usp 17,729 394,944 52,324 1,033,797
EURO 1,299 21,466 134 1,851
GBP 193 2,841 329 4,878

28




b, Amount Payable in foreign currency on.account of the following

As on 31.03.2010 _As on 31.03.2009
Forelgn Amount In Amount in
Particulars Currenty Rupees Forelgn Rupess Forelgn
Currency |, Curtency
Import of goods and
services Uso 169,818 3,782,134 247,831 4,886,261
Secured and
unsecured loans ~ UsD 89,207 1,9?7,.237 554,648 | 12,123,656
EURO _ C 35,802 579,215
Interest accrued and
not due on secured usD 531 11,824 ) -
and unsecured loans
Other payables usD 64,506 1,436,686 35,202 694,224
EURO 5,631 93,024 16,444 243,547
GBP 670 9,847 1,521 22,217

7. Provision towards |loans and ad\'rances of Rs. 19,968 has

been wrltten back as

this lawsult was settled out of cour’c for Rs. 9,620 ($ 200,000) towards full and

ﬂnal settlement.

8. Deferred Tax provislons:

The deferred tax assets / (llabilitles) arising out of slgnlficant timing differences

are as under.

L)

Particulars 2010 2009
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax Assets
Depreciation 45,504 94,482
Pravision for doubtful debts / advances 49,359 46,165
Pravisian for employee benefits and other
income tax disallowances 25,460 36,769
Deferrad tax asset - Net 120,323 177,416
9, Managerlal Remuneration
Particulars 2010 2009
Rupees Rupees
Salaries and bonus 9,234 3,100
Contribution to provident / other funds 1,001 682
Perquisites 191 826
Commission 53,500 46,500
Total 63,926 51,108
Notes:

(1} The remuneration as above in the previous year is for a managing director,
whereas in the current year It Is for managing director and other Executive

Director for part of the year,

(2)

The above does not include value.of gratulty benefit and benefit towards

leave balance. Since, the same |s actuarially valued for the company as a

whole,

29




10.

11.

12.

Computation of net profits under section 349 of Companies Act, 1956 :

2010 2009

Particutars

Rupees Rupeas Rupees Rupees

Profit before tax . 1,131,758 973,062
Add: .| Managerial Remuneration 63,926 51,108 |-

Loss on sale of fixed assets

(net) / assets written off 172 . 102

Provision for doubtful debts /

advances 35,065 99,163 44,246 95,456

Less: | Provision for doubtful debts /
advances no longer required '
written back 25,697 36,368

Net Profit as per Section 349 /
350 of the Companies Act,
1956 * 1,205,224 1,032,150

Remuneration @ 5% of Net
profits as per Section 349 of
the Companies Act, 1956 60,261 51,608

Commission to the Managing
Director as approved and
restricted " by the Board of
Directors 53,500 46,500

k]

* Some of the fixed assets are depreclated based on thelr estimated useful life
which is lower than the implicit perlod reflected In Schedute XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the rates of depreciation used by the
company are higher than the minimum rates prescribed by Schedule X1V,

The information regarding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information avallable with the Company. This has been relied upon by the
auditors.

Amount due to vendors under Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises for the
year ended March 31, 2010 is Rs. 53,754 (2009: Rs. 50,681) Interest paild during
the year / outstanding as at year end is Rs, Nil (2009 : Rs. Nil} (Refer schedule
12 - Current Llabilities)

Expenditure directly attributable to construction of fixed assets for project at
Jammu, the detalls of which are as under:

Particulars 2010 2009
Rupees Rupees

Cpening balance - 7,582
Add : Incurred during the year - -
| Employees remuneration ahd benefits <[ 1,845

Legal and professional ¢charges - 91
Miscellaneous expenses - 772

Totat - 2,708
Less: Capitalised during the year : - 10,250

Closing Balance - -
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13.

Employee benefit plans

a.

Defined contribution pigag

The Company makes contributions towards providest fund and
superannuation fund to defined contributlon retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees, The provident fund contributions are made to
Government administered Employees Provident Fund. Both the employees
and ‘the Company-make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan
equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The
superannuation fund is administered by the Birla Sunlife Insurance Company
Limited. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the covered emplayee’s salary to the retirement benefit plan to
fund the benefits, The scheme has been discontinued from October 1, 2009
after considering the views of the employees.

The Company recognised Rs. 36,968 t2009: Rs. 32,634) for provident fund
contrihutlons and Rs.4,566 (2009 Rs. 10,311) for superannuation
contribution in the Profit and Loss Account,

The Company makes annual contributions to the Gharda Chemicals Limited
Employees’ Gratuity Fund managed by Birla Sunlife Insurance Company
Limited, a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme
provides for payment to vested employees as ynder:

On Normal retirement/ early retirement/ withdrawal/resignation:

As per the provislons of Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972 with vesting pericd of
5 years of service,

On death tn service:
As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting
period, '

The following table sets out the status of the qratuity plan and the amounts
recognised In the Company’s financial statements as at March 31, 2010,

Sr. Particulars. Gratuity (Funded) As on
No, 31.03.2010 ' 31.03.2009 31.03.2008
1} Reconciliation in present
value of obligations (PVQ) -
defined benefit obligation :
PVO at the beginning of the year 166,554 148,945 137,313
Current Service Cost 13,312 12,854 10,763
Interast Cost 12,191 10,500 9,793
Actuarial (gain) / losses (2,154) 12,145 4,543
Benefits pald 8,008 17,889 13,467
VO at end of the year 181,894 166,554 148,945
IN) Change in fair value of plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at '
béginning of the year 155,659 151,403 131,467
Expected return on plan assets . 14,566 7,682 10,609
Actuartal gain/{losses) 25,379 (1,360} 7,030
Contributions by the employer 18,227 15,823 15,764
Beneflts paid {8,008) {17,889) {13,467)
Fair value of plan assets at end i
of the year 205,823 155,659 151,403

31




Sr. Particulars Gratuity (Funded) As on -
No. 31.03.2010 31.03.2009 31.03.2008
i11) | Reconcitiation of PVO and fair
vaiue of plan assets:
PVO at end of period 181,899 166,554 148,945
Fair Value of planned assets at
end of year 205,823 155,659 151,403
Funded statuys 23,929 (10,896) 2,458
Net asset/ (llability) recognised
In the. balance sheet 23,929 (10,896) 2,458
IV) [ Net cost for the year ended:
Current Service cost 13,312 12,854 10,763
Interest cost 12,191 10,500 9,783
Expected return on plan assels {14,566) (7,682) (10,60%9)
Actuarial {gain) / losses (27,533) 13,504 (2,4B7)
Net cost (16,596) 29,176 7,460
V) Actual return on the plan assets 39,945 65,322 17,639
V1) | Major category of assets as at:
Insurer Managed Funds 173,067 119,500 115,616
VII} | Assumption used in accounting
for the gratuity plan:
Discount rate {%) 8.00 7.50 7.50
Salary escalation rate (%) 6.00 6.00 6.00
Expected rate of return on pian
assets S5.00 5.00 8.00
VvIil) { Experience Analysis
Experience adjustment Plan
Liabilities - (Gain) / Loss' (2,154)
Experience adjustment Plan
Assets - Gain / (Loss) 25,379
14, Related party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard 18 (AS 18) “Related

Party Disclosures” as at March 31, 2010-

A) Name of the related party and nature of relationship; -

1.

11

i

V.

Subsidiaries of the company:-
a) Gujarat Insecticides Ltd.
by Gharda Australia Pty. Ltd.
¢) Gharda Generics Inc,

d) Gharda Investment Syndicate,
an assoclation of persons (95% interest)

.{56% share holding)
(100% share holding)

(100% share holding)

Key Management Peisonnel (KMP):-
(Chairman cum Managing Director)
(Executive Dlrector)
(From 27/07/200% to 13/02/2010)

a) Dr. Keki Hormusji Gharda
b) Mr. Alexander Luke

Relatives of Key Management Personnel (KMP) :-

a) Mrs. Aban Keki Gharda
b} Mrs, Jer R, Kavasmaneck

Jaintly controlied entity:- CGNS Limited

(25% Share Holding)




B) The following transactlons were carrled out with the related partles in the
financial year 2009-10 (The current year figures are in bold dnd grevious years
figures are given in ltalic form below each itam): _

Particulars Catelgqry Cat!;?orv Ca tIeIgIory Cat;\g’ory
Sales .
- Gujarat Insecticides Ltd, 116,017
142,805
- Gharda Generics Inc. 58,065
Sale of Consurmables —
- Gujarat Insecticldes Ltd. 544 - - -
' | 1,439 - - -
Racovery of expenses
- Gujarat Insecticldes itd. 254 - - -
6,874 - - -
Share of Profit
- Gharda Investment .
Syndicate 20 - - -
. 45 B - -
Purchases / Other serviges
- Gujarat Insecticides Ltd. 647,898 - - -
673,659 - - -
Processing Charges
- Gujarat Insecticides Ltd. 24,191 - - -
48,540 ” - N
Other Charges
- Gujarat Insecticides Ltd. 24,858 - - -
Remuneration
- Mr, K, H. Gharda - 59,078 - -
- 51,108 - -
- Mr, A K. Luke - 4,848 - -
Regtstration charges - - - 1,336
Commission - - - 4,283
“ - . - 6,678
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Particulars

Category
I

Category
11

Category
111

Category
IV

- Dr. K.H.Gharda

-Mrs. A.K.Gharda

- Others

Interest on Fixed Deposits:

- 293

293

57
57

Purchase of Assets:

- Gujarat Insecticides Ltd,

10,674 -
3,238 -

Sale of Assets:

- Guyarat Insecticldes Ltd,

18,959 -
42,621 -

Investments
- Gharda Generlcs Inc.

1,253 -

Fixed Deposlt Repayment:
- Others

Fixed Deposit Received:
- Dr. K.H. Gharda

-Mrs. A, K.Gharda

- Others

8,500

20

Repayment of loan given

7,608

C) The following balances were due from / to the related parties as at March 31, 2010
{The current year figures are in bold and previous years figures are given (n ltalic):

Particulars Categ""v Cate;gﬂrv Catleﬁorv cat}’&""’
Fixed Deposit - 8,500 9,020 -
) - - 520 -
Investments 91,895 - - 2,422
91,866 -l - 2,422
Other Recoverables - - - -
. - - 7,608
Sundry Debtors 41,845 - - -
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15.

Particulars Cate?orv Cat?gory Cat:zgrory Cat:\g{or\r
Sundry Creditors 270,585 - T - -
80,693 - - -
Other Payables Co- 53,832 - 2,417
- 44,937 - 14,286
Guarantees Glven 295,000 - - -
250,000 - - .

Segment Information for the year ended March 31, 2010,

The company is organized into the following business segments; -

i) Agro Chemlcals:-
Conslst of Pesticides,
formulations, .
This segment Includes manufacturing and trading of agro chemicals.

1)) Others (pigment and veterinary drugs)

intermediates, insecticides and weedicides and

(The current year figures are in boid and previous years flgures are glven in itallc
form below each item):

A. Primary reporting - 1

1. Profit and Loss account: -

Agro
For the year Chemicals Others Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Revenue: : _
Sales 8,813,128 135,353 8,948,481
8,333,950 98,759 8,432,709
Other Income 305,809 7,222 313,031
320,471 3,407 342,302
Results: ’
Segment Results 1,831,240 . (70,439) 1,760,801
1,729,579 {63,905) 1,665,674
Unallocated Income /
Expenses:
Interest expense - - 75,952
- - 190,955
Other expenses - - 567,792
- - 501,657
Other Income - - {14,701)
- - {(9,212)
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Agro
For the year Chemicais Others Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Net Profit before taxes - - 1,131,7'58
- - 973,062
Tax . - - 367,359
- - 323,844
Net Profit after taxes ' - - 764,399
- - 649,218
2, Assets and Liabilities:-
Segment
Agro Un-
As on March 31,2010 Chemicals Others allocated Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Assets 6,519,806 510,641 1,316,182 8,346,629

7,189,235 548,811 1,223,843 8,561,88%

Liabilities 1,405,921 32,269 679,994 2,118,184
619,383 19,964 2,783,267 3,422,614
Capital expenditure 137,500 41,775 90,412 269,687
223,371 33,946 87,829 344,646
Depreciation 154,519 58,373 140,092 352,984
155,837 58,303 219,252 433,392

Segment assets [nclude all operating assets used by a segment and consist
principally of operating debtors, Inventories and fixed assets, net of
allowances and provistons that are reported as direct offsets In the balance
sheet. Whlie most such assets can be directly attributed to Indlvidual
segments, - the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or
more segments IS not allocated to the segments since such allocation wlll
not be meaningful. Such assets mainly in¢lude cash and bank balances and
investments. Segment llabillties include all operating liabiiities and conslist
principally of creditors and accrued llabilitles, Segment assets and liabilities
do not include income taxes.
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Secondary reporting - Based on geoqraphical dist

ribution: -
Particulars India Usa Asla Europe Others Total
Rupeaes Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees Rupees

Sales based on | 4,597,064 | 726,001 | 902,008 | 1,272,234 ) 1,451,174 | 8,948,481
Customer

location 4,402,990 | 911,840 | 787,250 1,326,860 | 1,003,769 8,432 709
Assets based on | 6,696,251 | 533,598 | 279,915 | 574,484 | 262,381 | 8,346,629
Its location

6,879,890 | 883759 93,311 820,776 284,153 | 8,961,889

Capital

Expenditure 269,436 29 - 222 - 269,687
Based on s

locatlon 284,819 57,987 1,551 245 44 344,646

16. Earnings per share (EPS):
Particulars 2010 2009
Rupees Rupees
1 | Net Profit after taxation for the year 764,399 649,218
Weighted number of ordinary shares for

2 |} basic EPS 64,514 64,514
‘ Nominal value of ordinary shares (in

3 | Rupees) 100 100

Basic / dlluted earning for ardinary shares .
4 ] (in Rupees) 11,849 10,063
17. Informatlon pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs'3, 4C and 4D of Part II of

Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 as certifled by the management.

L.

Licensed capacity ~ Anllofos - 1000 _tons per annum,

I1. Instalied capacity, production, stocks and sales.
{A) Capacities and production  :-
Class of goods Unit Installed capacity * Productian #
2010 2009 2010 2009
Quantity Quantity Quantity Quantity

{I) Manufactured

products

Pesticides,

intermedlates and

weedicides Kgs 23,221,000 21,536,000 16,168,042 14,453,330
Formulations Kgs 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,385,812 1,570,096

Ltrs 8,000,000 8,000,000 6,384,868 8,621,827

Veterinary drugs Kgs 50,000 50,000 37,848 29,902
Plant nutrients Ltrs - - 54,126 23,372
Pigment Kgs 220,000 220,000 45,090 26,253
Third Party ' )

Manufacturing Lirs ~ - - 1,324,037 1,327,074

* 'As registered with Director General of Trade and Development. / Secretarlat for
Industrlal Assistance except for Anliofos and as certifled by Management and
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accepted by Auditors, being a technical matter. Installed capaclty in respect of
multipurpose plants Is determined on the basis of product mix, for the year.

# Production excludes captive consumption and sampies.

Class of goods uUnit . 2010 2009
‘Quantity | Rupees Quantlty | Rupees
(I1) Traded
Products
Pesticides Kgs 1,156,779 52,161 2,197,846 146,168
Ltrs 177,922 90,301 101,815 78,177
Total 142,462 224,345
(B) Opening stocks :-
Class of goods Unit 2010 20009
Quantity Rupees Quantity Rupees
(I} Manufactured products
Pesticides,
Intermediates and
weedicides Kas 3,072,544 888,140 2,134,584 546,675
Formulations Kgs 222,786 © 129,079 39,557 73,262
Ltrs 2,099,247 457,978 1,140,227 242,470
Veterinary drugs Kgs 6,900 8,712 5,600 8,017
Plant nutrients Ltrs 30,852 2,685 46,560 3,674
Pigment Kas | 11,082 11,738 10,651 14,577
Total 1,498,332 888,675
(1I1) Traded Products o
Pesticides Kgs . 216,187 18,394 92,455 3,623
Ltrs 40,614 16,031 98,534 . 25,168
Total 34,425 28,791
{(I11) Thirgd party
Pesticides Ltrs 532,628 156,368 615,747 114,944
Total 1,689,125 1,032,410
(C) _ _Closing stocks -
Class of goods Unit | 2010 2009
' Quantity Rupees Quantity Rupees
(1) Manufactured products
Pesticldes,
intermedlates and
weedicides Kgs 1,881,121 465,700 3,072,544 | - BBB,140
Formulations Kas 477,756 92,391 222,786 129,079

Ltrs 1,868,357 | 289,711 2,099,247 457,978
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Class of goods Unit 2010 2009
' Quantity Riupees Quantity | Rupees
Veterinary drugs Kgs_ 17,998 22,654 6,900 8,712
Plant nutrients Ltrs 22,407 1.855 30,852 2,685
Pigment Kas 6,350 7,316 11,082 11,738
Total 879,858 1,498,332
{I1) Traded Products
Pesticides Kqs 138,613 9,350 216,187 18,354
Ltrs 76,912 24,240 40,614 16,031
Total . 33,590 34,425
(III) Third party
Pesticldes Ltrs §78.635 123,845 532,628 156,368
Total 1,037,061 1,689,125

(2009:Rs. 74,053).

(D} Sales :-

The above stock is after considering obsolete stocks written off of Rs.29,874

Class of goods Unit 2010 2009
Quantity Rupeés Quantity Rupees
(1) Manufactured products
Pesticldes,
intermediates and
weedlcides Kgs 17,359,465 5,921,574 | 13,509,691 5,267,516
Formulations Kgs 2,130,842 334,633 1,382,809 425,171
Ltrs 6,615,758 1,943,700 7,596,868 1,898,028
Veterinary drugs Kas 26,750 55,876 28,602 55,633
Plant nutrients Ltrs 62,671 18,210 37,635 10,016
Plgment Kags 49,822 79,477 25,822 37,479
Total 8,353,470 7,693,843
(11) Traded Products
Pesticides Kgs 1,234,353 74,839 2,054,077 169,961
Ltrs 141,625 101,709 129,352 102,301
Total 175,548 272,262
(II1) Third party
Pesticldes Ltrs 1,378,029 367,493 1,338,874 414,350
Others 50,970 52,254
' Total 8,948,481 8,432,709
(E) C. 1. F. value of imported items :-
Class of Goods 2010 2009
Rupees Rupees
Raw materials 918,772 1,090,734
Capltal goods 10,540 ‘11,111
Stores 160 133




18.

(F)

Raw material and packing materials consumed :-

Sr. | Particulars 2010 2009
No. Quantity Rupees Quantity Rupees
Meta phenoxy
1 benzaldehyde 1,584,155 513,962 1,345,547 460,429
Pl ethyl thiophospiryl
-chloride 5,661,975 587,590 | 4,856,846 594,648
Acrylonitrile 3,804,215 305,035 3,539,810 278,665
Caustic soda lye 14,863,745 278,412 | 14,605,567 335,083
Tri chioro acetyi
chloride 3,317,981 204,309 3,772,974 225,714 -
QOthers 2,214,910 ( 2,782,146
Total 4,104,218 4,676,685
(G) *__Imported and indigenous materials consumed :-
Particulars 2010 2009
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
a | Raw and packing materials
Imported 1,112,300 27.10% 1,204,253 25.75%
Indigenous 2,991,918 72.90% 3,472,432 74.25%
Total 4,104,218 | 100.00% 4,676,685 | 100.00%
b | Stores
Imported 160 0.09% 133 0.10%
Indigenous 171,865 99,919% 128,711 99,90%
Total 172,025 | 100.00% 128,844 | 100.00%
(H)  Earnings in forcign currency :-
Particulars - 2010 2009
Rupees Rupees
F.0.B. value of exports 4,324,682 3,999,122
(1) Expenditure in foreign currency - .
. 2010 2009 :
Particulars Rupees Rupees
Travelling 1,375 1,685
Commission 22,292 24,021
Sales promotion 18,494 10,541
Interest 29,652 73,468
Foreign branch expenses 287,692 339,923
Others 10,961 25,666

The company has created Research and Development facilities at Dombivli and
Lote in the districts of Thane and Ratnagiri of Maharashtra and on the basis of trial
balance and cost center reports maintained in respect of these unlts Rs. 210,617
(2009: Rs, 189,073) have been Incurred towards revenue expenditure and Rs.
27,415 -(2009: Rs.-15,814) have been Incurred towards caplital expenditure.
Company’s aforementioned In-house Research and Development facllities at

40




Domblvil and Lote are recognized by the DSIR, Ministry of Science & Technology.
In-house Research and Development facllity at Dombivll is already approved for
the purpose of sec,35(2AB) of the Income tax Act, 1961 by the DSIR, Ministry of
Sclence & Technology since financlal year 2006-Q7. Whiereas the in-house Research
and Development facllity at Lote Is yet to recelve the approval for the purpose of
sec.35(2AB) of the Income tax, 1961, from the DSIR, Ministry of Sclence &
Technology application for which necessary application was filed by the company
during the flnancial year 2008-09 as per the guidelines Issued by the DSIR. We
have been Intimated that DSIR representatives have visited Company’'s Research &
Development facility at Lote in July’10 for the purpose of approval under section
35(2A8) of the Income tax Act, 1961.

Detalils of revenue and capital expenditure’ incurred in respect of R&D facilities at Dombivii
and Lote are as under '

sr. Ravenue expenditure Capitat Total
- Expenditure Amount
Nao. Particulars . Dombivil Lote Domblvli Lata
1 Cost of Materials 13,100 12,881 - - 25,981
(Cost included In materaf 5,807 1,510 - - 7,317
cost under schedule -15 of ’
Profit & loss account) | i
2 Personnel Expenses 119,511 33,519 - - 153,030
(Cost included fn personnel 90,757 29,784 - - | 120,541
expenses under schedule-16
of profit and loss account) . 1.
3 | Consumable Stores 6,579 ' 9,789 . -] 16,368
8,402 11,287 - - 19,689
4 Power, Fuel and Water 4,866 1,866 - - 6,732
4,432 . 2,182 - - 6,613
5 Insurance : 87 2% - - 108
318 109 . - 427
6 Repalrs and Maintenance ' 3,459 39 - - 3,498
65,433 4,569 - - 11,002
7 Sundry Expense 4,429 471 ) - - 4,900
(Costs agalnst serlal na from 17,607 5,877 - - 23,484
3 to 7 are included in
manufacturing and other
expenses under schedule-17
of Profit and loss account)
8 Ptant and Machinery - - 11,121 ( 15,596 { 26,717
- - 10,121 5,608 15,729
9 QOther Assets - - 427 271 698
- -1 23 62 85
Total Research and 152,031 58,586 11,548 | 15,867 | 238,032
Development 133,756 55317 | 10,144| 5,670 204,887
Expenditure -
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i9. The Company procures on lease, equipments, vehlcles and office premises under
operating leases. These rentals recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for the
year are Rs.4003 (2009:Rs.7,536). The future minimum lease payments and

ayment profile of non cancelleble operating leases are as under:

Particulars 2010 2009
Not later than one year 2,765 1,327
Later than one year but not

later than five years 2,119 -
More than five vears - -
Total 4,884 1,327

20. Certain proceedings are pending before the hon. High of judicature of Bombay In

connection with:

I. refusal by the company to accept / recognise transfer of shares lodged by a

party.

II. dismissal by the Company Law Board of a petition by certain minority
shareholders clalming relief primarily, in terms of sec 397/398 of the

Companies Act, 1956

These matters relate to rights/claims between shareholders Inter-se and do
not entail issues affecting these Accounts

21, Figures in the financlal statements are denominated and rounded off to the nearest
rupee in thousand, Figures of the previous year are regrouped and rearranged,
wherever required to conflrm to those of the current year's presentation.

Signatures to schedules 1 to 19.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

R. D. KAMAT
Partner

Place : Mumbal
Date : August 14, 2010.

For and on behalf of the Board

K. H. GHARDA

Managing Director

ANIL NAWAL

Chief Financlal -Officer

Place : Mumbat

Date : August 14, 2010
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i. Registration Detalls

Registration No, c [T]3]6]8]8) State Code ¢

Balance Sheet Date  : [3[1 [0 [312]0[1]0

Date Month Year
ii. Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
_ Public Issue Rights Issue
L1 T INT TALL T T Ll L IN[.TAa]l. T 17
Bonus Issue Private Placements

LI [ INJ. Al T [ ] L1 { INT. Jaf. [ []

iii. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Total Liabilities Total Assets

{ 1 lesjzszlalzl {1 tefsjal7]2[3]2]

Sources of Funds

Paid up Capital Reserves & Surplus
LT 1 T 1 JTejals|t] L { 1e6l2]2[1]9fof4)
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
[l [ [1[6f6f8[6]8] Ll {1 {e(3ftfofife]
Application of Funds "
Net Fixed Assets Investments
(I 1t[sf4]9ftl6]9)] P L1 Tvgzlslsl3]2]
Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
[T I[3(sl1lo]0]%] Ll L infefe] 1§
Deferred Tax

(T2l E 1215

iv. Performance of Company (Amount in Thousands)
Tumover** ' Total Expenditure
L1 19l2]7f6f2l1]3] L1 18i1Jafafa]s[s]
**Includes Other Income
+ - Profit/Loss Before Tax + - Profit After Tax
11 [CIChhtsgefzgsts) (=1 ] [ 1 J71elaf3i9l9]
Please tick appropriate box + for profit, - for loss)
Eamings Per Share in Rs. Dividend rate %

L[ T Tifejefei9} LI L T T [r]ofojo]

v. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Item Cede (ITC Code) |3/8]0j8}1 JO}. 1219

Product Description |C|H|LJO[R |PIY|R|]I [P]H|O]|S

Item Code (ITC Code) [318]0(8]1 JO[. [2]2

Product Description 11S|O{PIRJO|T|{U|{R{OIN
TIE|CJH|N |1 ]|]CJA]JL

Item Code (ITCCode) |3 (8|0 (8170 219

Product Description CIY{P|E|RIM|E[T|H|R|I |N
T(E{C{H[N|I |[C]AJL
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GHARDA CHEMICALS LIMITED

I3

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY.

Gujarat Gharda Gharda
NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY Insecticldes Australja Generics
. Limliad- Pty. Ltd Inc.
1. Financial year of the Subsidlary Company ended on 31/03/2010 3170372010 31/03/2010
2. HoMing Company's Interest :
Equity Shares of each - Rs. 10 Rs. 27.03 Rs. 0.42
(AUD 1) (USD 0.01)
(@) Number of Shares
Fully Paid - 203,170 75,000 3,000,000
Partly Pald NIL NIL NIL
(b) Extent of Holding 55.56% 100% 100%
Rupeas Rupees Rupees
3. Net aggregate amount of Profits / (Losses) of the Subsidiary (In '000) {In '000) {In '000)
so far as they concern members of Gharda Chemicals Lid.
{ 1) Not Dealt with in the accounts of the Holding Company
{a) For the Financial year of the subsidiary 35,546 (401) (957)
{b) For the previous Financlal Years of the company
since it became the holding company's subsidiary. 311,147 {1,776) -
{ii} Deait with in the accounts of the Hoiding Company .
(&} For the Financial year of the subsidiary NIL NIL NIL
(b) For the previous Financlal Years of the company
since it became the holding company's subsidlary. NIL NiL NIL
K. H. GHARDA D. T. DESAI
Managing Director Director
ANIL NAWAL MICHAEL RAJ

Place : Mumbél
Date : August 14, 2010.

Chlaf Financial Offlicer

Company Secretary
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
TWENTY NINTH ANNUAL REPORT
FINANCIAL . YEAR ENDING ON 318" MARCH 2010
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' BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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ShiD T Das%j]; Director
Shri DyliBN Irdh] { Rirector

-
E?zj ‘:F"\Tg;.
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Gujarat, India
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

DIRECTORS REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31°" MARCH 2010

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Twanty Ninth Annual Report together with
the Audited Statement of Accounts for the Year ended 31* March 2010.

(1

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Turnover 13,871 12,482
Profit Before Tax and Prior Penod tems 970 1,028
Provision for Taxation:
» Current Tax . 350 129
» (Excess)/Short Provision for Prior Year Taxes 8 0
» Mat Credit Entitlement 0 (28)
» Mat Credit Utilised 17 11
» Deferred Tax (37) (36)
»_Fringe Benefit Tax 0 8
Profit After Tax but Before Prior Period ltems 640 844
Prior Period Expensé 0 4
Net Profit 640 940
Balance of Profit & Loss Account bm_ught forward 2,781 1,840
Profit available for Appropriation 3,421 2,780
Balance carried forward to Balance Shest 3,421 2,780

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Sales turnover achieved for the year under review is at ¥ 13,871 Lakhs, reflecting 11%
increase compared to last year sales of ¥12,482 Lakhs. Increase (n turnover was
mainly due to higher volumes. However, margins remained under pressure due to stiff
competition and lower contribution.

CURRENT YEARS WORKING:

The company has achieved sales turnover of ¥ 6,310 Lakhs for the period Aprli to July
2010 as compared to X 4,245 Lakhs for the corresponding period of the earlier year.

The increase in sales is due to htghei’ volumes in all the products. The Organophos
compound products are gaining good market share Company expects to perform well
during the year.

DIVIDEND
To conserve the resources, Directors do net recomimend any- Dividend. -
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY

The Company is committed to its Environment, Occupational Health and-Safety Policy
in conformity with the provisions of the Environment Protection Act 1886. The
Company holds valid consents for Air, Water, Solid Waste. As regard Safety, it was
again a "no reportable accident” year. .
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

DIRECTORS REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31°" MARCH 2010

(5) PERSONNEL
Industrial relations remain cordial through out the year.
(6} DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1856, and the Articles of
Assaciation of the Company, Dr K H Gharda, retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers hlmsetf for re-appointment.

(7) AUDITORS .

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company, retire
at the end of the ensuing Anhual Generaf Meeting and are efigibie for reappointment,
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, members are requested to appoint
Auditors and fix their remuneration.

(8) COST AUDIT ‘ ‘.

The Company_ has maintained records prescribed under Cost Accounting Records
under Companies Act, 1956 for Pesticides (Technical), Cost Audit guidelines are also
complied with in accordance with the relevant rues.

(9) INSURANCE . _
" Ali the properties and assets of the Company are adequately insured.
(10) DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 217{2AA) of Companies Act 1956, the Directors state in respect of
Financial Year 2008-2010 that:

(2} In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have besn foliowed along with proper explanations reiating to material departures,
if any.

(b} The accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the
. judgements and estimates made, are reasonable and prudent, so as to give the
true and fair view of state of affalts of the company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit of the company for that year,

(¢} Proper-and sufficlent care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 1956, for
safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing ard directing fraud
and other irregularities,

(d) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going ‘concern basis.
(11) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES ‘

The information required under the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules 1975, as
amended {s reported to be NIL,
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y - GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

DIRECTORS REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31T MARCH 2010

{12) DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

Information as per the Companies (Disciosure of particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules 1988, relating to conservation of energy, technical absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and outgo are given in Annexure forming part of this report.

(13) COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The Company has 6btained.compliance certificate frem a secretary in wholstime
praclice as per the provisions of the Companies Act 1856. A copy of the same is
attached herewith.

(14) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the valuable services
rendered by the empioyees of the company and valuable co-operation extended by
Government Departments, Bankers and business associates for thd smooth
operations of the Company. '

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Mumbai D. H. Mirani D. T. Dasai K. H. Gharda
Date : 14/08/2010 . pirector Director Chairman
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31%" MARCH 2010

' Q.QNﬁEBMAIIQ&QE_EME&IV
ENERGY MEASURE TAKEN
(A) Fuel Savlng

Boiler Feed Water is: ﬁre-heated in economizers (recovering heat from flue gas)
up to 56°C and then further mixed with hot condensates (collected from Plants)
ralsing it up to.80°C, resulting In water and Natural Gas saving.

-

(B) Power Saving dua to:

1. Repfacing reciprocating Chillers by energy efficient Screw Chiller (200 TR)
-and Brinie Chiller (72 TR) to reduce annual power consumption by §%.

2. Based on savlng tn power consumption achieved already, one more Boiler

feed Water Pump for Thermex Boller was raplaced to achieve 0.15%
reduction.

(C) Others:'.

1. Power Factor In distribution center is maintained at 0.997 and rebate in
Power Bill Is earned svery month.

2. Insulation in Pipeline, Reactors and Heating Equipments Is maintained and
. whenever any damage is observed the same is attended oh priority basis.
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 315" MARCH 2010

FORM —A

{A) POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

(8)

2005-10. | 2008-08
1. Electricity
(a) Purchased Units (Lakhs KWH) . 85.860 | 80.703
* Tota) amount (Rupees in Thousand) 51,702 | 48,482
Average rate (Rupees per unif) 6.02 6.01
(b) Own generation
(i  Through Diese! Generator:
Units (Lakhs KWH}) 2.403 2.732
Units per Lt.of High Speed Diesel (KWH) 3.02 3.07
Cost per Unit (Rupees per KWH) 12.18 12.89
(i)  Through Steam Turbine/Generator:
Units (Lakhs' KWH) Nil Nil
Units per Ltr. Of Light Diesel Oli (KWH) Nil Nil
Cost per Unit (Rupees per KWH) Nil Nij
2. Coal , Nil Nil
3.  Fumace Qil {K. Ltr) Nil Nl
4, Light Dissel Oil -
Quantity (K. Ltr)- Nil Nil
Total amount (Rupees in Lakhs) Nil Nil
Average Rate {Rupees per K Ltr) Nil Nif
5. High Speed Diesel Oil '
Quantity (K. Ltr) 96 215
Total amount (Rupess in Thousand) 3,402 | 8,237
Average Rate (Rupess per K Lir) 35.62 38,40
CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION PER TONNE ’
2009-10 | 2008-08
1. Electricity {(KWH) 1,479.23 | 1,437.11
2, Furnace Oil (Ltrs) Nil Nil
3. Coal Nil " Nil
4, Others ( Gas) M3 430,20 | 396.73
5. Light Diesel Oil (Ltrs) Nil Nil
6. High Speed Diesel (Lirs) 16.45 38.20
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'GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITEDR

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31% MARCH 2010

"I.

FORM - B8
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT:

All the products of the Company are based on the indigenously developed
technology by M/s Gharda Chemicals Limited, Mumbai, the holding Company. The
R&D Centre of the Company is well equipped for innovation, product improvement,

development and for cost reduction.

Place :
Date :

OREIGN EXCHANGE NGS AND QUTGO
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year
0] Foreign Exchange earnings 919.71 1,114.58
{Exports - equivalent to US$ .
19,94,303) '
(Y  Foreign Exchange outgo
« Raw material : 317.44 451,42
« Others 12.89 2.03
330.30 463.45
For and on behalf of the Board
Mumbai D. H. Mirani D. T. Desai K. H. Gharda
14/08/2010 Director Dlrector - Chairman
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31“ MARCH 2010

KAPOOR & VED. 4™ FLOOR, SHAIVAL PLAZA,

COMPANY SECRETARIES SLUIS BRIDGEL & FOoAD:

AHMEDABAD 380 006,
PHONE 1 0792840328/7/8/9

COMPANY NO. 003929 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL Y 1,25,00.000[-

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To

The Members, .
GUJUARAT INSECTICIDE LIMITED

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of GUJARAT INSECTICIDE'
LIMITED as required to be maintalned under the Companies Act, 19586, (the act) and the
rules made there under and also the provigions contained in the Memorandum and Articles

of Association of the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March 2010. in our |.

opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the examinations carried out by
us and explanations furnished to us by the company, its officers and agents. We certify that
in respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure ‘A’ to this

certificate, as per the provisitns and rules made there under and all entries therein
have been duly recorded.

2. The CompanQ has filed the forms and returns as stated Annexure ‘B' to this
certificate, with the Registrar of companies, Regional Director, Central Govarnmaent,
Company Law Board or other authorlties as prescribed under the Act and the rules
made there under.

3. The Company, being a public limited company, comments are not required.

4. The Board of Directors duly met 4 times, on 06" June 2009, 28" August 2009, 256"
November 2009 and 27" February 2010 in respect of which proper notice were
given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes book
maintained for the purpose.

5. The company has not closed its Register of Members during the year under review.

6. The annual general meeting for the financial year ended on 31* March 2009 was held
on 23" September 2009, after giving due notice to the members of the company and
the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded In Minutes Book maintained for the
purpoess.

7. No Extra ordinary general meeting was held duri‘né the year.

8. The Company has not advanced any loan to its directors or persons or firms or
companies referred to under seclion 295 of the Act,
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13.

14.

15.

18.
17.

18.

19.
20,

21,

KAPCOR & VED

9. The company has been complied with the provision of Section 297 of the Act in
respect of contract specified in that section.

10. There were transac;ldhs which required entry into the register maintained under

' Section 301 of the Act.

11. As no relative of Directors was appointed in the office or place of profit, no approval
under Section 314 of the Act, was required.

12. No duplicate shares certifrcate was issued during the year.
The Company has:

()] not allotted any securities and has not received any share for transfer {
transmission during the year under review.

(i) not declared any dividend, therefore the question of depositing the amount of
deciared dividend in separate bank account does not arise.

)] not required to transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund the
amounts in unpald dividend account, application money due for refund,
matured deposits, matured debentures and the interest accrued thareon which
have remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years .

{iv)  duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted there were no appointment
of Additional Director, Alternate Directors and Directors to fill casual vacancy was
made during the Financial Year.

The Company has not appblnted any Managing Director / Whole Time Director /
Manager during the year under review.

The company has not appointed any sole selling agent during the year under review.

The Company has taken the approval of the Cenfraf Government for Section 233B8(2)
of the Companies Act 1858 for appointment of Cost Auditor and file a petition under
Saction 141 of the Companies Act 1856 with Company Law Board for condoning the
delay In filing of Form No.8 of the Company. The Company was not required to
obtain approval of Regional Director, Registrar or such other authorities as may be
prescribed under the various provisions of the Act.

The Directors have disclosed thelr interest in other finvis/campanies to the Board of
directors pursuant to the provislons of the Act and rules made there under.

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares during the Financial Year.

The Company has not bought back shares during the Financial Year ending 31*
March 2010.

The Company has not issued any preference shares / debentures; therefore
question of redemption does not arise.
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22,

There was no transaction necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance righis to
dividend, rights shares and bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not accepted deposit under the Provislons of Section 58A of the
Companies Act 1956,

24, The Company has not made any borrowings during the Financiat Year ended on 31"
March 2010.

25. The Company has not made [oans and investments, or given guarantees or provided
securities to other bodies corporate therefore il was not require to comply with the
provisions of the Act.

26. The Company has not allered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to
situation of the Company's registered office from one state to another during the year
under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to the
objacts of the company during the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not allered the provisions of the memorandum with respsct to
name of the company during the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to
share capital of the company during the year undar scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altersd its Article of Association durtng the Financial Year
under review, _

31. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause noticas recelved by the
Company and no fines or penalties or‘any other punishment was imposed on the
Company during the Financial Year for offences under the Act.

32. The Company has not received any amount as security from its empl_oyees duriqg
the year under certification and therefore no compliance under Section 417(1) is
required.

33. The Company has not constituted any Provident Fund for its employees, therefore
no compliance under Section 418 of the Act is required.

For Kapoor & Ved
Company Secretaries
. Ashish Shah
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 14/08/2010 C.P. No. 4178




GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED.

ANNEXURE TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE -
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 3137 MARCH 2010

KAPOOR & VED

ANNEXURE — A

‘Registers as malntalned by the Compan

1.  Register of Members under Section 150 of the Act.
2. Register of Director under Section 303 of the Act.
3. Register of Director's Shareholding under Section 307 of the Act.
4.  Register of Disciosure of Intarest under Section 301(3) of the Act.
5. Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors
‘8. Minutes of the Generat Meetlng of Shareholders
7. Ragister of Application and Allotment of Shares
8. Register of investments under Section 49

9. Register of Books of Accounts under Section 209
10, Transfer Register

ANNEXURE ~ B

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with Registrar of Companies, Regiona}
Director, Central Government or other authorities durmg the Financial Year ending an 31"
March 2010, .

Sr. Form No. / " Filed Date of Whether If dslay in filing
No, Return under Filing filed under whether requisite
Section prascribed additional fees paid
) time
Yes / No. :
1 Form - 208-09 159 | 07/01/2010 No : Yes
2 . | Form-23AC-09 220 { 3111212009 No Yes
-3 Form — 66-09 383A | 26/12/2009 No Yes
4 Form-8 125 | 28/12/2009 | .- No | N. A. (As Company
has filed a Petition
before CLB for
Condoning delay in
filing of Form No.8)
5 Form - 23C 233B(2){ 07/08/2009 Yes N. A,

For Kapoor & Ved
Company Secretaries

Ashish Shah
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 14/08/2010 C.P. No. 4178
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
AUDITORS' REPORT

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 315" MARCH 2010

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 31, NUTAN BHARAT SOCIETY,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ALKAPURI,

To,

BARODA - 390 007,

TELEPHONE : (0286) 2333778
FAX : (0286) 2338720

The Members of Gujarat Insecticides Limited,

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Shest of GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
(“the Company") as at 31% March 2010, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, both annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
India. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit algo Includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasanable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2003, issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act 1856, we enclose in
the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and § of the sald
Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report
as foliows:

{a) we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law havs been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

{¢) the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Shest, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in compliance with the Accounting
Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act 1956;

(e} in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the said accounts give the information required by the Companies Act
1956, in the manner §o required and give a true and falr view In conformlty with
the accounting princliples generally accepted In Indla:
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| OELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

i) in the case of galaﬁce Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31" March 2010,

(i) in the case of Profit and Loss Account of the profit of the Company for the
year ended on that date, and

(iii)  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the ¢ash flows of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

5. On the basls of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31"
March 2010 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is
disqualified as on 31* March 2010 from being appointed as directors in terms of
Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

““  For Deloitte Haskins & Saells,
Chartered Accountants
. (Registration No.117364W)

Gaurav J Shah
Place: Vadodara Partner
Date: 14/08/2010 Membership No. 36701
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FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 315" MARCH 2010

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 3 of the Report)

(i) In respect of Fixed Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of the fixed asssts.

(b} The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, nc material
discrepancies were noticed on such verificalion.

(c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute -
a substantial part of the fixed assets of the Company and such dlsposal has,
in our opinion, not affected the going concern status of the Company.

(i) In respect of inventory:

(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically varifled during the year by
the Management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the
Management were reasonable and adequate In relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business.

(c) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has maintained proper records of lts Inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(i) The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured
to / from companies, firms or other parties covered in the reglister maintalned
under Section 301 of the Companies Act 1956. As the Company has not
granted or taken any loans, clauses (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iif)(d), (iii)(f) and (iil){(g) of
Paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2003 are not applicable
to the'Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there exists an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of
the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of
inventory, fixed assets and with regard to the sale of goods and services.
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weaknesses in
such internal control system of the Company,

(v) In respect of contracts or arrangemenis entered in the Register maintained in
pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act 1956, to the best of our knowlgdge
and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:
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(V)

{vih)

(viil)

1%

(x)

(xi}

(a) The particulars of contracts or arangements referred to Section 301 that
neéded to be entered in the Register maintained under the said Section have
been so entered.

{b) Where each of such transaction is in excess of ¥ 5 lakhs in respect of any
party, the transactions have been made at prices which are prima facie
reasonable having regard to the prevalling market prices at the relevant time
except in respect of certain purchases from Companies under the same
management for which ~comparable quotations are not available and in
respect of which we are unable to comment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted deposits from the gublic during the period
covered by our audit report. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(vi) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2003, are not applicable to the Company.

In.our opinion, the internal audit functions carried out during the year by firm(s) of
Chartered Accountants appointed by the Management have been commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under Section 208(1) (d) of the Companies Act 1956 and are of the opinion
that prima facle the prescribed accounts and records have begen made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records
with a view lo determining whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the,'in'formation and explanations given to us In respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues,
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
- weaith tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty and other material statutory
duss applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(9) . There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, wealth
tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and other matenal statutory dues in
arrears as at 31* March 2010 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.-

(c) No dues of ‘lncome-t'ax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty and
_ excise duty dre outstanding as on 31* March 2010 on account of any dispute. -

The Company does not have any accumulated losses as at the end of the
financial year, Further, the Company has net incurred cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial
year.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks.
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(xif)

{xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

DELOITTE HASKINS 8 SELLS

Based con our examination of records and the information and explanations -
given to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion, the Company Is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund /
society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xill) of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order 2003 are hot applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xlv)
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2003 are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank
or financial institutions. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xv) of Paragraph 4
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2003 are not applicable to the
Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained
any term loan. )

{xvii} According to tha information and explanations given to us and on an overall

{xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the no funds
raised on short-tarm basis have been used for long-term investment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companles
covered in the register maintained under Saction 301 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the period
covered by our audit report, the Company has not |ssued any debentures.
Therefore, the provisions of clausa’(xix). of Paragraph 4 of the Conmpanies
(Auditor’'s Report) Order 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

As informed to us, dunng the period covered by our audit report, the Company
has not raised any money by way of public issues.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of cur audit.

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells,
Chartered Accountants -
(Reglstration No,1173684W)

Gauray J Shah

Place: Vadodara ’ A Partner

Date:

14/08/2010 Membershlp No. 36701
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GUJARAT (NSECTICIDES LIMITED
BAUANCE SHEET.AS AT 31at MARCH 2010

RUPEEF N THOUSAND
SCHEDULE AS 013181 Maré® 15 [ A at’ st March 09"
BOURCES OF FUNDS ’
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Shara Capital 1 3,857 3,657
Resarves and Surplus . ' i 2 722,147 658,171
LOAN FUNDS
Sacured Loans - 3 141,380 77,487
" TOTAL 887,164 739,325
APPLICATION OF FUNDS,
FIXED ASSETS.
Groas Block : 4 477,267 469,388
Less: Depreciation ’ 359,200 341,510
Net Blogk 118,087 127,858
Capltal Work-In-progress 90,832 52,506
’ 208,898 180,364
Deferrad Tax Assat (Net) ' 7,254 3.636
INVESTMENTS 5 " 6,688 6,687
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
inventorias ] 271,320 254,818
Sundry Debtors . 7 AT6 887 350,453
Cash and Bank Balancas B 27 430 27.364
Loans end Advances 9 159,192 ‘ 137,385
] 934,680 776,100
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
- Current Liabilitles B 10 243,312 204,181
Provisions : 11 47,074 28,301
290,388 230,462
Net Current Asrots R 644,303 548,638
TOTAL ' 867,184 739,325
Significant Accounting Palicles and Notes on Accounts 17
As per our Reporl of aven daie
Far Daloltte Haskina & Sefls . For And On Behalf Of The Board
Chartared Accountants
K.H, Gharde
Giurav J Shah . Chalrman
Partrar
M. No. 38701
J.R.Panchal "+ DHMiran D T Desal
DOM-Finance Director Director
Place : Vadodara | Placa : Mumbai
Dats : 14/08/2010 Date : 14/08/2010 -
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

Q@

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2010

Place : Vadodara
Date : 14/08/2010

Place : Mumbai

For the Yoar endod
SCHEDULE 31st March 2050 d1ist March 2008
INCOME ; -
Sales 1,387,141 1,248,183
Exclga Duly 73,077 §0,760
Net aales 1,314,084 1,187,432
Other Income 12 80,740 61,862
(Decreasa) / increase In Stock of Finlshed Goods and
Work In Process 13 {11,556) 13,803
1,383,248 1,232,888
EXPENDITURE :
Ceonsumption of Raw Materlals % 760,204 867,048
Purchases of Trading goods 85,273 71.562
Manulacturing and Other Expenses 15 429,658 359,402
imarest and Financlal Charges 16 12,859 12,333
Dapreciallon 18,187 19.671
1,289,211 4,130,086
Profit batora tax and prior period llems 97,037 102,792
Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax 35,008 12,880
- MAT Cradil entillarmant . {2,832)
- MAT Credh ulllised 1710 1,122
- Deferred Tax (3,668) (3.838)
- Fringe Banefit Tax - 800
33081 8,314
Profit attor tax but batore prior period ltams 83,076 94,478
Pror Period Items - Efffuent Treatmenl Expanse - 440
Net Profi 63,976 94,038
Add: Balanca of Profil & Loss Account Broughl Forward 278,072 184,033
Profil Avallable for Appropriations 342,048 278,072
‘y L L
Approprintions:
Surplua carried to Batance 3hast 342,048 2135012
Baslc and OHuted Eaming Per Share e
IFaca Value per Equily Share Rs. 10 (Previous Year Rs.10)) 174.88 287.17
{Ref Note 2 (G) of Sch. 17) :
Significant Accounting Pollcies and Notoa on Accounts 7
As per our Report of even date .
Far Daloltte Haskina & Sells For And On Bahalf Of The Board
Chartered Accountanis
K.H, Gharda
Guurav J Shah Chalrman
Partner
M. No. 36701
J4.R.Panchal D H Miranl D T Dasal
DGM-Finance Director Diroctor

Dato : 14/08/2010
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED -

©

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2610

Place : Vadodara
Date : 1410812010

Place : Mumbal
Dats : 18/08/2010

“Particulars Year ended 31.03.2010 Yoar endod 31.03.2008
. . {Rupses In Thousand} _{ Rupres In Thousand)
A Cash flow front Querating activities & :
Net Profil befora taxalion and exiracrdinary ltems 87,037 102,792
Adlustmenta for :
. Dapreciation 18,187 19,871
inleres! Income {728) {1.520)
Dividend !Income {127 {238)
Interast Expenses . 12,6899 12,333
{Profit) / Loss on Salas of Fixed Assels (89) (248)
Pror Perdod em - (440)
Unrealised farelgn exchange (gain)fioas 134 (814)
Provislon for Diminytion in valua of Investments - 281
Provision for Bad Dabt 8,905 17,935
Total 39,141 46,962
138,179 149,753
"Operating Profit tiefore working capltal changes
Ad]ustments for ! T
(Increase)/Decrease In trade recelvable (126,298) (50,043)
{Increase}{Dacraase In olhér recoivable 10,894 (28,487}
{Intrezse)/Decrease in Invantorias (198,402) (25,685)
Increase/(Dncreass) In rads payables &8 Other Hablitles 27,202 8,079
Tolal ' .. §104,617) 48,087
31,862 53,668
Cash gareraled rom operations ;-
Dlrect taxes pald {nel of refunds} (48,081} {23,064)
Total {48,081} {23,084)|

Cash flow before extraordinary ltlems 18,429 30,572

Nat cash from operating activitias : (18,428)] 30,672 |
8 Gaal fow from investing activitios ;

Purchases of fixed assals (46,734} (60,571}
Prgcoods from sale of fixed assats 101 1,875
increase/{Dacranse) in croditars for caplial goods 11,310 5425
Dividend recalved 127 238

Net caah used In investing activities : {38,187} {53,233}

c
Bomowing ( Net) 63,883 19,713
interest recalved 728 1520
Intaresi paid {12,858) {12,333)

Nat cash from financing activities : 51,762 8,898
Ngt increase/(decreaso}] In cash snd cash equivelsnts 125 (13,761}
Cash and cansh equivetants at the beginning of the year 27,354 41,128
Cash and cash equivetants at the clase of the year 27,490 17,364

For Deloltté Haakins & Sells For and on bahall of Board of Directors

Chartered Actountants

K.H. Ghards
Chalrman

Gauvrav J Shah

Partner JRPanchal O H Mirani © T Dassi

M. No. 35701 DGM- Financa Director Dlrector
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCé BHEET AS AT } st MARCH 2010

@ GUJARAT JNSECTICIDES LIMITED

[+] H [of

AUTHORISED © *
1,250,000 Equlty Shares of Rs 10 aach

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP:
365,870 Equlty Shares of Rs.10/- eagh fully paid up.

( 203,170 Equily Shares are held by Gharde Chamicals Ltd.

the hokling company and kits nominses)

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 2 ; RESERVES AND SURPLUS

GENERAL RESERVE

As per last Balance Shesel

Add: Amount transfarred from Capital Rademption Reserve

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per 1asl Batance Sheot
Less: Amounl transfarrad 10 Genaeral Rasarve

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 3 ; SECURED LOANS
WORKING CAPITAL FACILITIES 9
Cash Cradit from Bank of Baroda

Secured by hypothacation of ali iInventories,
Book debis and othar movablp flxad asests,
both present and future and Corporate
Guzrantea of Mis.Gharda Chemlcals Ltd., tha
holding company. ,
TOTAL

RUPEES IN THOUSAND

As 8t 318t March 10 | As at 31st March 0B
12,600 12,600
- 3.657 . 3657
3687 - 3,867
L
380,099 377,256
. ‘ 2,844
380,009 380,088
- 2,844
- {2,844)
342,048 276,072
722)147 ' 858,171
stk —
141,280 77487
141,380 77,497
S E——
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET A5 AT 31st MARCH 2010

.

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS ;
Trade Investments : {Unquolsd)

106360 Equity Sharas of Rs.10/- each of Bharuch Environment Infrastructure Lid. Fully

522138 Equily Shares of Rs.10/- each of Bharuch Eco Aqua Infrastruciure Ltd. Fully

Othor than Trade Investments :
In Government Securitles ;
National Saving Cerlificate
[Daposited with Government Authorltias)

fn Equity Shares ; (Unquotod)

1 Equity Share of Rs.50 each of The Soclal Co.operative Bank Lid. Fully pald up

CURRENT INVESTMENTS :
In Equity Sheres: {Quoted)

1300 Equity Shares of Rs.10 sach af NHT Tachnologlas Limiied

500 Equily Shares of Rs.10 each of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited *

373 Equity Shares of R$.10 each of Tala Elxsl Limited

1428 Equity Sharas of Rs.10 each of Vardhaman Texlltes Umited

Aggrogate amount of quoted Investments Rs.371/- (Provious yoar Rs.371/-}
Aggregate Markot value of the quoted investmonts Ra. 1299/. (Previous year Rs.

Figures in { } Is Rupges only and not in (housand

SCHEDULE 6 ; INVENTORIES

Raw Malerials

[Intiudes Goods In Transit Rs.13086, Previous Year Rs.8661)
Finlshed Goods o

Work tn Prograss
Stores, Spares and Packing Matsrial

TOTAL

SGHEDULE 7 ; SUNDRY BEBTORE

Dobts putstanding over six months
Secured. Considared good:
Unsecured Conslderad good
Considered doubtful

Cthar Debts
Secured, Conaiderad good:
Unsecured Considarad good
Ra 80141
dug from Gharda Chemicels Lid.,the holding
company)

Less: Provision for doubtiul debts
TOTAL

TOTAL

RUPEES IN THOUSAND

Ag at 31st March 10]As at 3181 March 08

1,084 1,084
5,221 5221
a3 az
t.

{50} {50)

80 80

192 182

3 3

a8 88
6,868 9,607 |
102,032 84,456
116,387 117,473
11,540 22,010
41,381 30,080
271,320 284,918
2,003 1,862
8,128 26,531
35,680 30,676
2,462 1,741
468,004 330,319
516,267 360,120
36,580 30,878
476,807 380,483
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@ GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

Cash on Hand
Balance with Schiaduled Banks In:

Current Accounls

Flxad Depos!l Accoun! -
lGIverj as llen Rs. 130, Pravious Year 184]

SCHERULE §: LOANS AND ADYANGES

Secured ,Consldersd good
Unsacured Considered Good
Intarest Accrued

TOTAL

Advances recoverable-In cash or kind or for vaiue (o

be recslved

Loan given {v Gharda Foundation
Balanos with Central Exclze Authorlties
Advance Payment of Incoms Tax (Nel)
MAT Credit Entitternent

Cansidered Doubtiul

Less ; Provision for doubtful advances

SCHEDULE 10 { GURRENT LIARILITIES

Sundry Creditors ;
Micro Small,Medium Emerprlsas
Qthsrs Cradllors

Advancas from cuslomens
Othar Liabllitles

SCHEDULE 11 PROVISIONS
For Incoms Tex

For Fringe Banefit Tax
For Leave Encashment

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

" RUPEES IN THOUBAND |

As at 31t Macch 10

A ot 3ist March 08

432

26,928
130

27,480 |

368

27

25,674
25,000
5.801
102,102

738
158,030
738

169,182 |

22,705
185,034

A ettt

211,829

9.838
21.548

243,312

35,009

12,088
47,074

165

27,015
184

27,364

280

8

27,160
25000
15,488
ar.e7
1,710
138

138,103
738
137,365

2,583
171,280
173.853

9,663
20.824

20‘=151

12,580
800

12,841

26,301
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED . .
SCHEDULES FORMING PART CF THE PROFIT AND LO8S ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2010

RUPEES IN THOUSAND
For the Yoar ended
34st March 201D 31at March 2008

SCHEDULE 12 ; OTHER INCOME
Dividend Incoma . 127 238
Intores! income |Gross) :

On Long Tarm Investiment 3 2

On Daposits with Bank and Others 728 1,517
Jobwork Incoms [Gross) ' 24,2356 41,509
Expont incentive 12,918 3,203
gad Deb! Racovered ' 2,200 -
Excess provision of expenses in eariler year now written 4“4 208
Profit on sale of Flxed Assets [Netf) 8g 248
Compensation for damages 22,706 -
Miscallanaous Income 17,684 14,588

TOTAL B0, T40

SCHECULE 13 ; IDECREASE) { INGREASE IN 3TOCK OF
EINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROCESS

CLOSING STOCK

Finished Goods
work In Process

Lass : OPENING STOCK
Finished Goods
work in Procass

TOTAL
BC] M
Opening Stock
Add : Purchases
Less: Solas
Less: Closing Stock
TOTAL

118,387

11,540

17,472

22,010

127,827

130,483

!11.586]

84,456
705,245

679,700 |

17,434

682,268 |
102,032 |

760,234

13,803

61,852

130,483

125,880

82,670
870952
789,621
8.019
751,502

84,456

867,048
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QUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31at MARCH 2010

RUFPEES IN THOUSAND
For the Yoar onded
318t Mareh 2010 Jiat March 2009
C
EXPENJES
Consumpllon of Packing Materials - 22,548 25,387
Consumption of Stores end Spares . 10,022 12,368
Powar, Fus! and Weter Chargas 84,870 82,637
Execlse Duly 21,314 22,703
PERSONNEL EXPENSES :
[Refer note 2(0) of Sch 17) .
Salartas, Wagas and Banus . 107.939 094,782
Contribulton {o Providen! and Other Funds 18.877 12,551
Stal Wellare and Other Expanses 13,133 15,354
140748 1226887
REPAIRS AND MAINTEMAMCE : )
Buillding ’ 4,059 1,026
Plant and Machinery - ! 30,678 21,812
Others ! 3472 5,002
47,209 28,036
Reant 1,881 1,431
Rates and Taxes 2,368 1618
tnsurance . 852 1,442
Commission on Sales : ', 1,585 475
Salling Expenses | 21,205 12,470
Bag Dabis . 29,921 :
Less: Provision for the semae created In Pravious Years - (29.821)
Provision for Doubtful Dabls 8,908 17,028
Miscallaneous Expanses (Ref nots 2(E) of Sch 17] 39,383 19.665
Provision for Dimunition In valus of investmant : - . 281
Legal und Professional Feas ' ) 4,579 4,783
Travelling end Convayance Expenses 7.816 5,532
Foralgn Exchangs Fluctuetion [Net] 3,684 51
TOTAL 428,660 359,403
SCHEQULE 16 ; INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES
*
Interest to
Banks . 44918 8303
Others 948 1,067
Bank Charges 1.738 1.682
Cash Discount [Allowad) 5,648 4,593
Less: Cash Discount [Eamed) | 385 212
5,281 4,382
TOTAL T 12,069 | 0658 T 12,333 |
== —— - ——_ =




— o - fre— s v m————— e PO ——— it 1y e e b e e -

GUJARAT INSECTIGIDES LIMITED _
BALANGE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE :

1 Registration Details.
Registration No. 3929/80-81 State Coda : 04
Batance Sheet Date 31/03/2010 -
? Capiltal raisaed during the year : (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Pubilc Issue NIl Rights !ssue NIL
Bonus 1ssue NIL Private.placeman! NIL
3 Positlon of mobllisation and deployment of funds : (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Total Liabliities 867,184 Total Assetls 867,184
Sources of Funds
Pald-up Caplital - ' 3,657 Reaal"véo & Surplu.s 722,147
Secured Loans 141,380 . Uns&;cured Loans -

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets ' 118,067  Investments 6,668
Net Current Assets 644,303 Misc. Expenditure NIL
Accumuiated Losses ‘NIL

4 Performance of the Company : (Afn'ount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Income - 1,383,248 Total Expenditure 1,286,211
Profit before tax : 87,037 Proflt/(Loss) After Tax 63,978
Earning Per Share in Rs. . 174.88 Dividend Rate % NIL

4

5 Generic names of prlncipal products of the company (As per monetary terms).
. ¢

Product Bescription Product Gode
insecticldes (T), Intermediates and its Formulations 380810

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

K.H. Gharda

Chairman
J.R.Panchal D H Miranl D T Desal
bGM- Finance Diractor Director .
Place: Mumbal Date: 14/08/2010

[hY)




) . GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2010

SCHEDULE 17; ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS AND
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PROV!SIONS OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES
ACT 1956 .

1. -Accmmlmg.g_oumg :

(A) FRAME WORK OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on the
accrual basis in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1956,
except otherwise stated hereunder

(B) USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent amounts as at the date of financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
resuits could differ from these estimates. Sugh difference is recognized in the
periods in which the resuits are known./ materialized.

(C) FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION:

(a) Fixed Assets are stated at cost. Cost of Fixed Assets [ncludes incidental
expenditure incurred up to the date of commissioning of the assets.
Renewals and replacements are either capitalised or charged to revenue, as
appropriate depending upon the nature and long term utility of such renewals
and / or replacements.

(b) Depreciation on ali Fixed Assets is provided on Written Down Vaiue Method
at the rates specified in Schedule XiV of the Companies Act 1956.
Leasehold Land Is amortised over the period of lease. Depreciation on
additions and disposals during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis
according to the number of days of each such asset was used during the
.year.

(D) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS: .

The Company evaluates the Impairment losses on the Fixed Assets whenever
events.or changes In clrcumstances indicate that thelr carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. If such assets are considered to be impaired the Impairment loss
is then recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assefs
exceeds the recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's net selling
price ahd value In use. For the purpose of assessing Impairment, assets are
" grouped at the smallest lavels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flow.

(E) INVESTMENTS:

Investm.ents are stated at cost. Provision is made for other than temporary
diminution In value, if any, in t'he value of Investment.

AN




L@ GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED |
| SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH 2010

(F) INVENTORIES:

(a) lInventories are valued as follows ;

+ Raw Materials : At cost [Net of CENVAT & VAT ]

¢+ Work in Process : At lower of cost or net realisable value
¢+ Finished Goods : At lower of cost or net realisable value
¢+ Traded Goods : At lower of cost or net realisable value
+ Stores, Spares : At cost [Net of VAT]

+ Packing Materials : At cost [Net of CENVAT & VAT ]

Cost formula used for inventories is FIFO except for Finished Goods and
Work in Process.

(b} Insurance charges on indigenous Raw Malerials, Stores & Spares and
Packing Materials are direclly charged to Profit & Loss Account and not
inventorised. - '

(G) REVENUE RECOGNITION:

(a) Sales are regognized In accordance with Accounting Standard 8 viz. when
the ssller has transferred to the buysr, the proparty In goods, for a price, or all
significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer
without the seller retaining any effective controt over the goods. |

(b) Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders’ right
to receive payments Is established.

(H) EMPLO\"EES' BENEFITS:
(a) Shor term empltoyee benefit obligations are estimated and provided for.
{b) Post employment banefits:

(y ‘Defined Contribution Plans: Company's contribution to Provident
Fund and other funds are determined under the relevant schemes and
/ or statute and charged to revenue.

(i) Defined Benefits Plans: Company's liabilities towards Gratuity and
compensated absences are actuarially determined at each balance
sheet date using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and
logses are recognized in revenue.

() FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION:
{a) Foreign curcency transactions are recognized at rates on date of transaction.
(b) Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end are restated
at year end rates. Any Income or expenses on account of exchange

difference either on settlement or on restatement Is recognized in Profit &
l.oss Account.

e
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH 2010

)

2

(L)

{c). Exchange dirferences relating to labilities for acquisition of aned Assets |f
any, is being charged to Profit & Loss Account.

BORROWING COSTS:

(a) The Company follows the practice of capitalisation of interest on borrowings
for capital expenditure, for the period up to the date on which the plant is
ready for commercial producfion (i.e. production in commercially feasible
quantities in a commercial practicable manner).

-(b) -All other borrov;.ring costs are charged to revenue.

INCOME TAX:
Income Tax expense comprises of current tax and differed tax charge / credit.

(a) Provision for current tax s made on basis of the assessable income under
the Income Tax Act 1961.

L.

"{b) The Company recognizes deferred tax asset or deferred tax llability based on

the tax effect for timing differences i.e. the differences that originate in one
accounting period and are capable of reversing in subsequent period(s). The
tax effect is calculated based on prevailing regulations. The deferred tax
assets / llabllities are reviewed as at each balance sheet date based on
developments during the year and available case laws. The deferred tax
assets and M.A.T. Credits are recognized only to the extent there is a
reasonable certainty of realization in future.

PROVISION CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurements are
recognized when there Is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that thera will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized but are disclosed In the notes. Contingent Assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:

(A)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR:
[Rupees in Thousand]

(a) { Estimated amount of Cantracts remaining to be . 2,128
.executed on Capital Account and not provided {1,786}
. . | for [net of advance] ’
(b) | Guarantees given by the Bank on behalf of the ’ 2,696
Company against which the Company has given (1,210]

.Counter Guarantees to Bank and outstanding as
at the end of the year

(c} | In respect of Show Cause Notices received from 440
Employees’ State Insurance Corporation . (539]

)




GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH 2010

(d)

income Tax Demand on account of disputas
raised by the Income Tax Department, under the
income Tax Act 1961, there are favourable
decisions of Appsllate Authorities in the
Company's own case in the earlier Assessment
Year as well as other assessees’ case, which
appear to sustain most of the contentions of the

68,564
[1,01,850]

(e)

Cofnpany on disputed poinfs. -

As'ga': r the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court
of India, the company has received the refund of
Excise Duty deposit on PCA amounting to
Rs.116.42 Lakhs during the Financial Year
2004-2006 and the provision made there against

was written back. However on certain grounds, -

the Department of Central Excise & Customs,
Ankleshwar, has filed a petition before the
Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for non-eligibility
of the said refund. The Company is contesling
the petition filed by the Department. In view of
Hon'ble Supreme Court uphelding the subject
matter in favour of the Company in its earlier
decision, the Management does not expect any
liabitity there against.

11,642
[11,642]

M

The Department of Central Excise and Customs
have imposed a differential Excise Duty on the
captive consumptian of MPB in finished product
being the difference of rate of MPB selling price
and captive price,

.77
(7]

(9)

The Department of Central Excise and Customs
issued conflrmed demand of Service Tax under
Business Auxilliary Service for incineration of
Sodium bi-Sulphite of M/s Gharda Chemicals
Ltd and M/s Solvay Specialities (India) Lid. We
have filed an Appeal against the same on 08
February 2010.

1,102
[NIL]

(h)

Tha Department of Central Excise and Customs
have confirmed demand of Service Tax under
Business Auxilliary Service for processing of
Sodium Sulphite Solution of M/s Gharda
Chemicals Ltd, Dombivil. We hava filed an
Appeal agalnst the same on 20 May 2009.

167
{157}

(i}

Claim from certaln employees for Reinstatement
which is sub-judice

Unascertainable
[Ungscertainabiej

{8) Micro, Small and Medium enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act 2008, have been determined "based on the
information available with the Company and the required disclosures are given
below:-




GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
. SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31%" MARCH 2010

!

' itam Disclosuras required under Micro, Smail & {Rupees in
No. . Madium Dsvelopmant Act 2006 Thousand]
(a) Delayed payments due as at the end of 31% March 2010 NIL
) on account of Principal and Interest due thereon [NIL]
(b) Total interest paid on all delayed payments during the NIL
year under tha provisions of the Act [NIL]
(¢} Interest dua on principal amounts paid beyond the due NIL
“date during the year, but without the interest amounts [NIL]
under this Act,
(d) Interest accruad but not due NiL
: [NIL
(e) Total Interest Due but not paid NIL
- - : [NIL

(C) The Company has shownh certain expenses net of recoveries, from the Holding
Company. The amount of recoveries are as under:-
Rupass in Thousan

(a) | Personnel Expenses - . NiL
. ' 3,851)

(b) Repairs & Maintenance NiL
. . [1,766]
(c) [ utilities NIL
[2,593]

(d) Insurance } NiL
172}

(e) Miscellaneous Expenses NIL
_[62]

(£ Stores NIL
- ' {372]

Total NIL
[8,716]

(D) DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO ACCOUNTING STANDARD-15 [REVISED]
'EMPLOYEES BENEFITS"

(a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN:

The Company has recognized in the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended
31% March 2010, following amounts as expenses under defined contribution
plan under the head ‘Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds' in
Schedule 15 — 'Personne! Expense":-

Rupees in Thousand

(i) Provident Fund 5,188

' _[4,450

(ti) Superannuation Fund - : 3,161

: . {2,596}

(i) Employee Pension Scheme 2,663
- {2,702
Total . 11,012
) 19,748
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31° MARCH 2010

(b) DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN:

[Rupees In Thousand]

Rs.211 (PY Rs.211)

Definad Benelils Plans Gratully Loave
. Encashment
i Expense recognized in Profit &Loss Account
for the year ended 31% March 2010:
(a) | Current Service Cost 2,870 2,014
{2,.351]:1 [1,628]
{b) {interest Cost 4,014 048
[3,623) [796]
(c) | Actual Return on Plan Assets (5,528) NIL
: » [{4,607)) [NIL}
(d) | Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation 6,823 (2,133)
[1,780 [568]
(e) | Net Expense recognized in Profit & 8,181 829
Loss Account (in Schedule 156 ~ (3,147) [2,991]
Parsonnel Expenses)
(ii) Changes in Obligation during the year ended
31 March 2010:
(a) | Obligation as on 01* Aprll 2009 53,527 12,641
' [48,308] ] [10,613]
{b) | Current Service Cost 2,870 2,014
[2,351) ] [1,628)
(¢} | Interest Cosl 4,014 048
' [3,623) (796]
(d) | Actuarial (Gain} / Loss on obligation 6,823 | (2,133)
' . {1,780] [568]
(@) | Benefits Paid (1,833) [ (1,404)
[{2,534)] {(883)}
(H | PV of Obligation as on 31" March 2010 | 65,402 12,066
: [63,527) ] [12 641]
(i) Changes In Plan Asssets during the vear
ended 31* March 2010: '
(a) | Fair Value of Plan Assets as ofn 017 55,264 NiL
April 2008 [48,612] [NIL}
(b) | Actual Return on Plan Assets 5,526 NIL
: [4,607] [NIL]
(¢} | Actuaria! Gain 7 (Loss) NIL NIL
[NIL} {NIL]
(d) | Contributions 9,243 NiL
{4,297] [NIL]
(e) | Benefits Paid (1,625) " NIL
[2,253] [NIL]
(f} | Accrued Payments (Not paid due to (208) NIL
some technical reasons) {(282)} INIL]
{9) | Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 317 68,411 NIL
© | March 2010 including bank balance of | [66,183) INIL]

/b




éUJA RAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31%" MARCH 2010

(iv)

Net Assets / Liabillttes reco?nized in
‘the.Balance sheet as at 31°
2010:

March

(a) | PV of Obligation as on 31" 65,402 12,066
March 2010 [63,527] [12,641)
(b) | Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 68,411 NIL
31" March 2010 [55,193] [NIL)
(¢) | Net Liabilities / (Assets) (3,009) 12,066

racognized in the Balance Sheet
as at 31" March 2010

((1.668}} (12.641]

(v)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions:

. { (@) | Discount Rate as on 31*" March 7.50 % 7.50 %
' 2010 (par annum) (Refer Note-1) [7.50 %] [7.50 %]
(b) | Actual Rate on Retum of Plan 10.00 % N.A.
Assets as at 31* March 2010 [9.44 %) [NA]

{per annum) (Refer Note-3) -
(c) | Expected increase in salary 6.00%|  6.00%

costs (per annum) (Refer Note-2

16.00 %] 16.00 %]

Notes:

1. Discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the
Balance sheet date on Government Bonds, where the currency and
terms of the Government Bonds are consistent with the currency and

estimated terms for the benefit obligation.

2.  The estimate of future salary increases taken into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and

demand in the employment market.

3. 100% of Plan Assets are invested In Group Gratuity Scheme offered

by LIC of India.

' (E) MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES IN SCHEDULé 15 INCLUDES:

Rupess in Thousand]

.(a) Directors' Sitting Fees NIL
) _[5]
(b | Auditors' Remuneration:
() Audit Fees | 500
{5001
(i) Tax Audit Fees 75
{75]
(i) Reimbursement of Expenses B
: [5]
(¢) Cost Audltor's Remuneration:
Audit Fees 40
[20]

i



GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH 2010

F) DEFERRED TAXATION:

[Rupees in Thousand)

(a)

Deferred Tax Assets arising on account of timing
differences:;

(i) Expenses Allowable on Actual Payment

4,102
14,207]

(i) Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances

13,453
(10,427}

Total

17,555
[14,724]

(b)

Deferred Tax Liability arising on account of timing
differences:

{ Depreciation

14,261
[11.087]

Total

10,261
[11,087)

{c)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liability)

7,294
13,636]

Total

7,294
[3,636]

(G) EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Earnings Per Share as computed in accordance with the Accounting Standard-20,

[Rupees in Thousand

(a) | Net Profit After Tax used as numerator for calculating 53,976
EPS ) [94,038]

(b} | Weighted average number of Equily Shares of Rs.10/- 3,65,870
each used as denominator for ¢calculating EPS 3,65,670]

(c) | Basic and Dlfuted Earnings Per Share (Rs} 174.86
. [257.17

(H) DETAILS REGARDING CAPACITIES AND PRODUCTION:

(As centified by Management and not verified by the auditors, as the same being
tachnical matter.) ) .

Sr. Products lnstalled Production

No. Capacity | Inclusive of | Captive -

Captive Consumption
Consumption

{a} | Insecticides (Technical)* | MT 2,230 1,086.3 221.4
{2,230 {667.7] [295.3}
(b) | Intermediate MT 2,200 2,996.0 931.3
{ : [2,200} [3,024.8] | 11,015.0)

[




GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31¥ MARCH 2010

"1 {6} | Formulations MT 300 260.3 309
[300] [226.0] 140.1}

KL 3,500 1,451.8 431.3

{3,500] | [1,697.1] [600.3]

(d) | Pigment intermediates | MT 1,280 45.0 NIL

: {Exclugively used by GCL) [1,250] [22.0) [NIL)

* Licensed Capacity not applicable to the activities of the company except for an
Organcphos compound viz. Quinalphos an Insecticides (T) covered under the
licensa, which is 400 MT. An-application is made for expanding the capagcity from
400 MT to 1200 MT, but sanction is awaited. The actual production of Quinalphos
is 738.4 MT (Previous Year 345.4 MT),

() DETAILS REGARDING OPENING & CLOSING STOCK AND SALES:

. Opening Stock Closing Stock Sales
Flnlshed [ Value Vaiue Value
Goods Unit | Quan- [Rupeas | Quantty | [Rupees Quantity [Rupeas
tity In In in
_ Thousand] Thousand] Thousaend]
Insecticldes MT 368.7 11,084 138 _ 4,580 897.3 3,02,238
{Technical) [74.5} [21.813] [36.7} [11,064) {410.21 | {1,59,076]
. MT 01| 106 0 75 2,064.7 7.02,715
Intesmediates 0.3 2471]  [o.4] 1108] | 12.010.1] | [7,27,478]
MT 411 21,506° 49.0 14,727 2215 69,947
[208] | [15849] 1 [41.1) [21,506] [165.5]1 167,168}
Formulations - |e—1—398.3 |~ 58.650 | 4257 | 72.404 989.1 | 2,32,324
{370.6] [41,910) | [398.3] | ]58,959] | [1,069.2] | [2,28,608])
MT 83.2 '2,258 77.7 2,282 343.8 16,560
Trading — 148.0 . [2,579) 183.2] ]12,258) [175.7) 110,387]
Formulations [ KL 42.2 23,580 18.8 22,338 46.40 63,258
.1 er.71] 31,1171 (42.21 |, [23,580) [61.9] {65,468
1,17.473 1,16,386 13,87.141
TOTAL [1,13,315] [1,17,473] [12,48,183
{J) DETAILS OF CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS:
3. Quantity Value
No. Particulars Unit MT 7 KL} {Rupees
in
. ) Thousand]
(a) | Organic Chemicals [MT] 5,540 5,74,990
Az {4,953 [4,76,243]
[KL] NIL NIL
[20 [837]
(b} [ Inorganic Chemicals MT) 1 6,315 1,85,243
[6,268] 11,89,968)
7.60,234
TOTAL 16,67,048]
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH 2010

(K) DETAILS OF PURCHASE OF TRADING GOODS:

Quantity Value

Padiculars Unit {MT ! KL} [Rupaas in Thousand]
Formulations {KL} 23.0 51,263
[71.4) {62,584])
[MT] 338.3 . 14,010
[211.0] " 18,888]
) 65,273
TOTAL 171,552)

(L) BREAK UP OF RAW MATERIALS AND STORES CONSUMPTION:

Sr. No. Particulars % Rupees in Thousand

{a) Raw Materials: , :

() Indigenous 80.00 .6,08,749

{81.07] [5,40,749)

(i) imported 20.00 1,563,484

[18.83] [1,26,228]

Total 100.00 7,60,233

{100.00] . [6,67,048]

(b) Stores indigenous 100.00 19,874

[100.00] (12,368

‘4

(M) VALUE OF IMPORTS CALCULATED ON CIF BASIS IN RESPECT OF:

Parliculars

Rupees in Thousand

Raw Materials

31,560
[46,142]

(N) EARNING IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE: .

Particulars ‘T Rupees In Thousand
Export of Goods on FOB basis 91,871
: [1,11,458]

(O) EXPENDITURE INCURRED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (INCLUD!NG AMOUNT
PROVIDED BUT TO BE REMITTED) ON ACCOUNT OF:

Rupees In Thousand

Sr. No. Particulars
{a) Selling Commission 1,221
[NIL
(b) Interest & Flnance Charges - Bank 67
f166]
(c) Travelling Expenses - Directors NiL
{37
TCTAL N 1,288
[203]
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH 2010

(P) Foreign currency exposure that is not hedged by derivative instruments as on 31"
March 2010, is as follows:-

Particulars Currency Amount in Foreign Amaunt

Currency (in Thousands) {Rupees in Thousand]
Sundry Creditors usD 57 2,617
' {183] 19,3911
Sundry Debtors UsD 190 8,681
) {1,025] (51,071}
Net Receivable ' 11,298
. - [60,372]

(Q) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY ACCOUNTING
STANDARD - 18;

{a) Key Management Person b Dr K H Gharda, Chairman
_ Mr D H Mirani, Director
(b) Related Party & Relationship :: . M/s Gharda Chemicals Ltd,

Holding Company
(c) Transactions with Related Parties:

The following transactions were carried out with M/s Gharda Chemicals Ltd,
Holding Company, in the oidlinary course of business:

5r. No. Naturé of Transactions Rupeas in Thousand

(i) Purchases:
|'¢ Raw Materials . 63,684
S P ¢ [95,441]
"¢ Finished Goods | 54,476
[54,665]
+ Fixed Assets 19,504
- . : [44.,057]
+ Reimburgemant.of Expanses 703
_ : ‘ . 18,8741
(i - Sales:.
’ + Raw Materials 10,013
{13,506]
+ Finished Goods 8,37,807
. [6,77,471
¢ Fixed Assets and Others 10,837
{3,986)
¢ Job Work ' 23,757
[39,824]
¢+ Recovery of Expenses 246
’ i [8,716]
¢ ' Compensation for Damages 22,705
: INIL]
+ Cenvat Credit availed-Tolling arrangement 1,728
[286]
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GUJARAT INSECTICIDES LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARGH 2010

(R)

S
(T)

iii) Equipments on Returnable Basis:
¢+ Received 6,918
[768]
+ Returned 1,700
[89]
+ Outstanding 7,589
[2,381]
(iv) Outstanding Receivable {Net) 2,70,585
{80,141}
) Corporate Guarantee Received 2,95,000
[3,50,000]

There are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard 17 as the
entire operations of the company relate to one segmaent, viz. Agro chemicals

consisting of insecticides, Intermediates and Formulations.

Figures in brackets [ ] are in Respect of Previous Year,

o

Previous Year figures have been regroupad, wherever nacessary, so as to make

them comparable with the Current Year figures.

Schedule 1 1o 17 form_an integral par of accounts

For and on behalf of the Board

J R Panchal K H Gharda . D H Miran}
DGM -~ Flnance Chalrman Director
Place : Mumbai
Date : 14/08/2010

D T Desal
Director
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GHARDA AUSTRALIA PTY. LTD,

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRFECTORS® .

" The Directors have pléasure in presenting herewith their i2™ Annual Report together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the period ended March 31, 2010.

1. QOperations :

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Gharda Chemicals Ltd, India. The
company holds and maintains product registrations. During the year there was no
income. The loss of AUD 9,764 is transferred to the Balance Sheet,

2. Dividend :

The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year.

r.

3. Auditors:

The Company is required to appoint auditors for the financial year 2010-11.
. M/s.Dhanraj Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountunts, arc eligible for re-

appointment.
For and on behalf of the Board,

K.H.GHARDA
Director

Mumbai : July 15, 2010.



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

31, Shubh Commoercial Pramlses Co-op. Soc. Lid., Opp. Tamptation Hotal,.
Akrull Statlon Road, Kandivil (East), Mumbal 400 101,
Tel.: 66733877 Ema!l drjassociate@yahoo.co.in

Auditors Report to the members of
GHARDA AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED

1.

3.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of GHARDA AUSTRALIA PTY
LIMITED as at 31st March, 2010 and related Profit and Loss Account of the
Company for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
India. These standards require that we plan and perform the sudit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
mis-statermnents. An audit includes examining on test-basis evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Audit also includes assessing

the accounting principals used and significant estimates made by management, as .

well as statement evaluating the overall financial presentation. We believe that our
audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that:

() We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpase of audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

ic) The Balance Sheet referred to in this report is in agreement with the books of

account,

{(d) In our op:mon and to the best of aur information and according. to the

explanations given to us, the said Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account read
together with the notes thereon give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

{(I) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2010
(11} in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the' Company for the
year ended on that date,
For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accguntants

(DHANRAJ JAIN)

Place: Mumbai : ) . Praprietor
Date: 15% July, 2010 Membership No, 41754
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GHARDA AUSTRALIA PTY. LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2010

at Mumbal, India Date: July,15, 2010,

SCHEDULE| 2010 2009
AUD AUD
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capita! A 75,000 75,000
Profit and {Loss) Account {71,549) (61,785)
TOTAL 3,459 13,215
APPLICATION OF FUNDS )
Fixed Assets - Registrations B - -
Current Assets, Loans & Advances C 3,840 17,317
Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions D 389 4,102
NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,451 13,215
TOTAL 3,451 13,215

NOTES F
As per our report of even date
For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
DHANRAJ JAIN K. H. Gharda
PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR
Membership No. 41754
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GHARDA AUSTRALIA PTY. LTD.

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2010

2010

2009

SCHEDULE _
AUD AUD

INCOME -
Usage Rights - -

TOTAL - -
EXPENDITURE
QOther Expenses £ 9,764 7,782
Amortization ~ -

TOTAL 8,764 7,782
Profit / (Loss) before prior period items (8,764) (7,782)
Prior period items . -
Profit / (Loss) before taxation {9,764) (7,782}
Taxation (Including Prior Years) - -
Profit ! {Loss) after taxation {9,764) {7,782)
Balance brought forward {61,785) {54,003)
Profit / {Loss) available for apprppriation (71,549) {61,785)
APPROPRJATIONS
Transferred to Balance Sheet (71,549} {61,785}
Basic / diluted earnings per share {0.13) {0.10)
NOTES F
As per our report of even date
For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
DHANRAJ JAIN K. H. Gharda
PROPRIETOR DIRECTOR

Membership No. 41754

at Mumbai, India Date: July,15, 2010.

86



GHARDA AUSTRALIA PTY.LTD,

SCHFDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2010

2010 2009
AUD AUD
A. SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
75,000 (2009; 75,000) Equity Shares of AUD 1 each " 75,000 75,000
issued, Subscribed and Paid up- T
75,000 (2009 : 75,000) Equity Shares of AUD 1 each 75,000 75,000
. 75,000 75,000
B._FIXED ASSETS - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Opening Balance (At cost) 18,500 18,500
Additions made during the year - -
18,500 18,500
Accumulated Amortization 18,500 18,500
Amortization - -
Wiritten down value - -
C. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Batance with Bank 74 -
Prepayments - Accounting First Financial Services Pty Ltd. 3,768 } -
GST Recoverabla - - 2,045
Sundry Debtors - Gharda Chemicais Limited - 15,272
(Conslidered good - outstanding for more than six months)
3,840 17,317
D. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Account Payable : . 389 500
Payable Others - Accounting First Financial Services Pty Ltd. - 3,602
B . 389 4,102
E. OTHER EXPENSES
Accountancy Charges 1,318 1,318
Management Fees 5,000 5,000
Audit Fees . 112 100
Office Maintenance Charges 1,182 1,182
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,162 182
9,764 7,782
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F. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Financial Statement
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with generally applicable accounting standards in India.” These are
prepared in the currency of the company’s domicile as the holding company is not
required to consolidate them. Under Australian laws only local companies can hold
registrations in respect of agrochemicals. Gharda Australia Pty Ltd. holds product
registration in Australia, However, it does not carry out any other commercial
activities. The financial statements are prepared in annexing the same with parent
! company's account.

’ B. Revenue Recognition
Income and expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

| 2. In the opinion of the Board of Directors,
(i) Current Assets, loans and advances do have a value on realization in the
normal course of business at least equal to values stated in the accounts.

(ii ) All known liabilities have been provided for and there are no contingent
Liabilities.

3. Gharda Australia Pty, Ltd. is responsible for maintaining product registrations in
Australia. Accounts are prepared on going concern basis in view of the fact that
product registrations are continued to be hold and maintained by Gharda Australia

Pty. Lad.

4. Sundry Debtors include dues from the holding company amounting to AUD Nil ™
(2009 : AUD 15,272) (Maximum outstanding due during the year AUD 15,272)

5. Eaming Per Share (EFS) .

Particulars 20190 2009
Net Profit / (Loss) after taxation for the year (AUD) (9764) (7782)
Weighted number of ordinary shares for basic EPS 75000 - 75000
Nominal value of ordinary share in (AUD) 1 1
Basic and diluted earning / (loss) ordipary shares in (AUD) {0.13) (0.10)

6. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary.
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Schedules A to F form part of accounts for the year ended March 31,2010.

As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf at Board of Directors
For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
K.H.GHARDA
DIRECTOR
(Proprietor)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 15™ July,2010
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GHARDA GENERICS INC.
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS'

The Directors have pleasure in presenting herewith their 2" Annual Report together with
the Audited Statement of Accounts for the period ended March 31, 2010.

L. Operations:

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Gharda Chemicals Ltd, India. Sales
turnover achieved is USD 1,283,070. The company suffered a loss of USD 21,324.92
during the year which is transferred to the Belance Sheet.

2, Dividend :

" The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year.

3. Auditors:
The Company is required to appoint auditors for the financial year 2010-11,

Mss.Dhanraj Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants are eligible for re-
appointment. :

For and on behaif of the Board,
) K.N.SINGH

Director

Mumbai : July 15, 2010
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

31, Shubh Commerciat Promises Co-op. Sac, Ltd,, Opp. Temptatlon Hotat,
‘Akrull Station Read, Kandivil (East), Mumbal 400 101,
"Tel.: 85733877 Emall drjsssociate@yahoo.co.in

Auditors Report to the members of
GHARDA, GENERICS INC,

l.-

We have-audited the attached Balance Sheet of GHARDA GENERICS INC. as at 31st
March, 2010 and related Profit and Loss Account of the Company for the year -
ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audnting standards generally accepted in
India. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

. mis-statements. An audit includes, examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures .in the financial statements. Audit aiso includes assessing
the accounting principals used and significant estimates made by management, as
wetll as statement evaluating the overall financial presentation, We believe that our
audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We report that: - .

(@)
)
©

@

We have obtained all the mformatlo nd explanations which to the best of our -
knowledge and belief were necessury%or the purpose of audit; :
[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

The Balance Sheet referred to in this report is in agreement with the books of )
account;
In our opmlon and to the best of our information and according to the

" explanations given to us, the said Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account read

- together with the notes thereon give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, - '

(I) in the casé of the ﬁalance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at '

31st March, 2010

(ID) in the case of the Profit and Loss Accéunt, of the Loss of the Company for the

year ended on that date,
For DHANRAIJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

(DHANRAJ JATN)

Place: Mumbai : ' Proprietor

Date:

(5™ July, 2010 : Membership No. 41754
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GHARDA GENERICS INC.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2010.

-

- 2009

at Mumbal, india Date: July,15, 2010.

SCHEDULE 2010
usp usp
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS ]
Share Capital A 30,000.00 | 30,000.00
Profit and {Loss) Account (21,324.92) -
8,675.08 30,000.00
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Current Assels, Loans & Advances B8 .
Accounts Receivable 940,210.00 -
Cash and Bank balance 779.87 29,650.21
940,989.87 29,650.21
Less: Current Liabilities C
Accounts Payable 932,169.60 -
Expense Payable 145.19 69.33
932,314.79 69.33
Net Current Assets “ 8,675.08 29,580.88
IMISCELLENEQUS EXPENDITURE
Pre-operative Expenses D - 419.12
8,675.08 ] 30.000.00
NOTES F
As per our report of even date
For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES.
Chartered Accountants
DHANRAJ JAIN
PROPRIETOR Dr.K.N.Singh
Membership No. 41754 Director
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GHARDA_GENERICS INC.

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

Membership No. 41754
at Mumbal, Indla Date: July,16, 2010.

SCHEDULE 2010 2009
uso usD
INCOME
Sales ) 1,283,070.00 -
TOTAL 1,283,070.00 -
EXPENDITURE
Cost of material sold . . E 1.303,146.40 -
Other expensaes: '
Professional fees © 409.00
Bank Charges 303.25
Audit fees 117.15
| Pre-operative Expenses Written off " 41912 -
© TOTAL 1,304,394,92 -
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation (21,324.92) -
Taxation 0.00 -
Profit / (Loss) after taxation (21,324,92) -
Balance brought forward 0.00
Profit / (Loss) available for appropriation (21,324.92) -
APPROPRIATIONS
Transferred to Balance Sheet (21,324.92) -
Basic / diluted earnings per share {0.71) -
NOTES : F
As per our report of even date
For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
DHANRAJ JAIN Dr.K.N.Singh
PROPRIETOR Director
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GHARDA GENERICS INC.

. ERY
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2010
2010 2009
usD UsD
A. SHARE CAPITAL : -
AUTHORISED u
10,000,000 EQUITY SHARES OF USD 0.01 EACH 100,000.00 100,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
3,000,000 EQUITY SHARES OF USD 0.01 EACH 30,000.00 30,000.00
' 30,000,00 30,000.00
B. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Balance with Bank - Wachovia Bank 779.87 29,650.21
Accounts Receivable ( Considered good- cutstanding for more
than six months ) 840,210.00 ' ~ '
940,989.87 29,650.21
C. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Audit Fees payable ) 112.00 50.00
Expenses payable l 33.19 19.33
Accounts Payable - Gharda Chamicals Limited 932,169.60 -
932,314.79 69.33
D. PRE-OPERATIVE EXPENSES e R
Bank Charges - . 369.12 '
Audit Fees - 50.00
- 419.12
E. COST OF MATERIAL SOLD
Raw Material 1,153,680.00 - '
Formulation Cost . 149,466.40 - )
1,303,146.40 -
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F. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES :

A, Convention :
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention and on
mercantile basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared in annexing
the same with parent company’s account.

B. Pre operative expenses: .
Pre operative expenses have been written off entirely during the year.

C. Revenue Recognition :
Sales are recognized when goods are supplied and are accounted net of trade
discounts, rebates, sales tax / value added tax and sales returns ( on goods
outsourced ). :
Revenue is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to collectibility or
measurability exists.

2. The annual accounts are drawn up for the year ended March31,2010.
3. Gharda Generics Inc. is a fully owned subsidiary of Gharda Chemicals Limited.
[t is entitled to the benefits of and is respansible for :

(1) The product registration obtained in USA and
(ii) The membership of various trade research associations; contributions
wherein have been made by the parent company.
4. In the opinion of the Directors
(i) Current Assets are stated at a value which is realizable in the ordinary
course of business.
(ii) All the known liabilities have been provided for and there are no
Contingent liabilities.
5. Previous year figures are for the period from 08/05/2008 to 31/03/2009,
Schedule A to E form part of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2010

As per.our report of even date attached for and on behalf at Board of Directors

For DHANRAJ JAIN & ASSOCIATES
* Chartered Accountants

Dr K.N.Singh
DIRECTOR

(Proprietor)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 15" July,2010



